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Newalta is a leading provider of innovative 
engineered environmental solutions that 
enable customers to reduce disposal, 
enhance recycling and recover valuable 
resources from oil and gas exploration and 
production waste streams. We simplify 
the critical challenges of sustainable 
environmental practices through the use  

of advanced processing capabilities deployed 
through a differentiated business model. 
We serve customers onsite directly at their 
operations and through a network of locations 
throughout North America. Our proven 
processes and excellent record of safety make 
us the first-choice provider of sustainability-
enhancing services for oil and gas customers. 

With a highly skilled team of people, a 
two-decade track record of innovation and 
a commitment to commercializing new 
solutions, Newalta is positioned for sustained 
future growth and improvement. We are 
Sustainability SimplifiedTM. Newalta trades  
on the TSX as NAL. For more information,  
visit newalta.com. 

OUR SUSTAINABILITY  
STARTS AT HOME. 

NEWALTA HAS SUSTAINED ITSELF 
DURING ONE OF THE WORST 
MARKET DOWNTURNS IN A 

GENERATION BY PRUDENTLY 
MANAGING COSTS, AGGRESSIVELY 

PURSUING NEW BUSINESS, 
ADHERING TO PROVEN SAFETY 

PRACTICES AND DEMONSTRATING 
VALUE TO OUR CUSTOMERS. 

NOW WE’RE READY  
TO DRIVE PERFORMANCE WITH  

A RENEWED SENSE OF  
OPTIMISM FOR OIL PRICES  

AND MARKET ACTIVITY.  
WE HAVE THE PLAN, THE 

PEOPLE AND THE CAPABILITIES 
TO LEVERAGE RECOVERY AND 

POSITION OURSELVES FOR  
FUTURE GROWTH.
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A messAge from 
John BArkhouse

  
President and Chief Executive Officer

IMPROVING PROFITABILITY AND 
STRENGTHENING THE BUSINESS 

In 2016, we took incremental actions to 
our previous year’s initiatives to reduce 
our cost structure. We rationalized 
positions, consolidated our real estate 
footprint, sold redundant equipment 
and redeployed underutilized assets to 
more productive pursuits. We kept  
a tight lid on all discretionary spending. 
We sought and found savings in our 
processes including salary reductions. 

With the actions taken over the past 
two years to protect our balance sheet, 
we have aligned our cost base to 
activity levels associated with WTI in 
the $40 range by removing more than 
$60 million in annualized costs from 
2014 levels. 

We also suspended our common share 
dividend to protect our balance sheet 
and liberate cash to service our debt.

Through public and private placement 
offerings of common shares in April 
2016, our shareholders – including 
Executives and the Board of Directors 
– raised net proceeds of $51.2 million. 

We reinvested sparingly but sufficiently 
to maintain our core assets and add 
tools to improve our competitiveness. 
Against a 2016 budget of $10 million for 
growth and $5 million for maintenance, 
total capital expenditures were $14.8 
million. Recognizing we can leverage 
the industry recovery largely with  
our existing portfolio of modern, 
capable assets and with minimal 
incremental capital, we will exercise 
prudent judgment in managing future 
capital expenditures.

Our actions in the past year sent 
a strong signal to all stakeholders, 
including our lenders, that Newalta is 
here to stay and can be trusted to do 
what is necessary to ensure future 
success. Our lenders were confident 
in the actions we took and responded 
in kind, providing amendments and 
waivers to our debt covenants, 
improving our flexibility and reducing 
uncertainty in very uncertain times. 

The presence of long-term, fixed-rate 
debt on our balance sheet has also 
provided breathing room. At December 
31, 2016, close to 80 percent of 
Newalta’s indebtedness was comprised 
of senior unsecured long-term debt 
with fixed interest rates and laddered 
maturity dates of November 2019 and 
April 2021.

DEMONSTRATING VALUE  
FOR OUR CUSTOMERS 

Adding new customers and developing 
longer-term valued relationships were 
fundamental to our sustainability in 
the past year and will be core to our 
recovery in 2017. 

Providing environmental services for 
Anadarko Petroleum Corporation in 
northeastern Colorado was among 
our 2016 highlights. We approached 
this major U.S. producer as part of our 
proactive sales initiative. We assessed 
their situation, toured their site in the 
DJ Basin and determined we could 
develop a cost-saving solution using a 
proven Newalta concept. From there, 
and in just 20 days, we mobilized 
and deployed a modular processing 
package for the recovery of drilling fluid 
from drill cuttings. 

We responded to market challenges 
and acted aggressively to position 
ourselves for the future.

After taking actions to protect our 
balance sheet and align our cost base 
to declining drilling and completions 
activity and reduced production waste 
volumes, we are firmly positioned  
for recovery. 

It has not been easy. The past two 
years have been filled with marketplace 
challenges brought on by a collapse 
in commodity prices. The bottom of 
the industry downturn was reached 
in February 2016 when the price per 
barrel of West Texas Intermediate 
neared US$26. 

We responded aggressively but 
purposely to move Newalta towards a 
positive cash flow model and transform 
our approach to market without 
sacrificing the safety of our operations 
or our good standing with customers. 
These actions, described below, set  
the stage for the execution of our 
business plan and our recovery.

FELLOw SHAREHOLDERS

NEWALTA’S 
STRENGTH 

OF PURPOSE, 
RESILIENT NATURE 

AND ABILITY 
TO ENGINEER 

EFFECTIVE 
SOLUTIONS FOR 

OUR CUSTOMERS 
SERVED US WELL  

IN 2016. 

20
DAYS TO 

CONSTRUCT AND 
COMMISSION 
A MODULAR 
PROCESSING 

SOLUTION FOR A 
U.S. E&P  

COMPANY



Over the past year, as we worked  
to sustain ourselves, our executive 
team and our Board of Directors 
revisited our vision for Newalta, 
originally launched in 2015 along with 
five-year growth objectives. While 
the downturn rendered those growth 
metrics unattainable within the defined 
time horizon, our vision of being  
An Environmental Energy Solutions 
Company Delivering End-to-End, 
Value-Added Services is still very 
relevant to our future.

Our business plans build on the actions 
undertaken in 2016, are consistent with 
the strategies articulated in 2015 and 
are anticipated to contribute to higher 
revenues and margins. To pursue 
the vision, we have created detailed 
plans and made individual executives 
accountable for their execution. 

One of the priorities is Customer-
Driven, Value-Added Solutions. 
It demands we become great at 
quantifying, showcasing and selling 
solutions to our customers’ biggest 
challenges. Recent restructuring of our 
sales team will assist us in delivering 
this priority but its fulfillment will 
demand developing and bringing to 
market product line solutions for drilling, 
completions and production. 

Another core priority is North American 
Infrastructure Expansion. To meet this 
priority, we will expand our operating 
footprint in the Western Canadian 
Sedimentary Basin (WCSB) where 
we have an established network and 
develop a presence with scale in 
high oil producing areas in the U.S. 
The rationale for doing so lies in our 
desire to own the value chain for our 
customers’ waste streams from the 
moment those streams are formed 
through to their final disposal.

We also intend to advance our vision 
through detailed actions designed to 
improve our operations and create a 
collaborative and data-driven culture 
that does not rely solely on experience 
and instinct to make good decisions. 

The project was our fastest ever 
deployment and helped this producer 
achieve its local sustainability goals  
– a great example of a new opportunity 
secured in a tough market. 

In its first full year of operation, our  
Fort McMurray facility found a receptive 
market, particularly in the second half 
of 2016. First half performance was 
disrupted by the May wildfires that 
brought industry production in the 
region to a standstill and reduced our 
second quarter Adjusted EBITDA by 
approximately $4.5 million. 

I was extremely proud of how our 
people responded under these trying 
circumstances. We were fortunate our 
employees and their families in the 
region were unharmed. Our team did 
an incredible job of quickly achieving 
a business-as-usual state for our 
customers, and the facility was kept 
busy for the final two quarters of  
the year. 

Once again, Newalta realized steady 
and predictable cash flows from the 
onsite contracts we hold, which are 
generally not tied to commodity prices 
or drilling activity and complement our 
sustainability. Contracts represented  
22 percent of 2016 revenue. 

BUILDING MOMENTUM  
FOR OUR RECOVERY 

As expected, the cost and cash saving 
measures previously noted could 
not offset the impact of a severely 
depressed market. 2016 revenue of 
$205.4 million was 37 percent lower 
than 2015 primarily driven by reduced 
production waste volumes in Oilfield 
facilities and lower mining contributions 
in Heavy Oil Onsite. Adjusted EBITDA 
of $21.9 million was down $32.8 million 
compared to 2015. 

However, we did note sequential 
improvement in Adjusted EBITDA in 
the final three quarters, and the fourth 
quarter represented our first quarterly 
year-over-year improvement since the 
beginning of the downturn. 

0.6
TOTAL 

RECORDABLE 
INjURY 

FREqUENCY 
REPRESENTED 

NEWALTA’S 
SAFEST YEAR  
ON RECORD

“AS AN 
ENVIRONMENTAL 

ENERGY 
SOLUTIONS 

COMPANY, WE 
WILL DELIVER 
End-to-End, 

ValuE-addEd 
SERVICES  
TO OUR 

CUSTOMERS.”
John Barkhouse 
President and  

Chief Executive Officer
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THE OPERATING 
LEVERAGE 
RECOVERY 

FOR NEWALTA 
EMERGES 

AND GAINS 
MOMENTUM AS 
TODAY’S MORE 

STABILIzED 
OIL PRICES 

INCENTIVIzE OUR 
CUSTOMERS TO 

INCREASE ACTIVITY 

› Liquid emulsions processing  
    and drill cuttings: 

Rig counts in the WCSB are increasing 
with higher commodity prices. As rig 
counts grow, the need for our liquid 
emulsions processing and drill cuttings 
treatment will increase, impacting  
our network of facilities located near 
active plays. 

› Completions waste: 
With the increase in active rigs, the 
number of wells drilled and completed 
is growing. This, coupled with longer 
laterals and higher proppant loading, 
will lead to larger fracs and an 
increase in water volumes. In 2016 
and continuing into 2017, several of 
Newalta’s disposal wells were worked 
over and re-completed to extend life 
and increase capacity. In addition, our 
Fox Creek, Alberta disposal well was 
commissioned late in 2016. These 
moves position us for demand recovery.

› Production-related  
    waste treatment: 

The waste generated from a producing 
well is dependent on the type of 
hydrocarbon production, whether it is a 
new or established well, and formation 
characteristics. In turn, all factors result 
in different waste profiles to our facility 
network and therefore, differing rates 
of recovery in our markets as activity 
increases. Key areas to watch are 
conventional production, Cold Heavy 
Oil Production with Sand (CHOPS), 
oil sands production and dry and wet 
gas drilling. The CHOPS segment 
was particularly hard hit during the 
commodity decline because the 
complexity associated with produced 
sand keeps surface operating costs 
relatively high. Recovery of this 
production waste source is expected 
although we anticipate it will be the 
slowest to return. New well drilling 
programs should recover towards 
previous historical levels. 

› Steam Assisted Gravity  
    Drainage (SAGD) production: 

Newalta provides onsite services 
under contract to large SAGD facilities 
enabling them to recover slop oil. In 
2017, we anticipate incremental volume 
to be generated from SAGD operations 
as producers have announced modest 
capital investments to increase the 
capacity of existing facilities. Longer-
term capital investments in new facilities 
are expected to be predicated on a 
sustained WTI oil price environment 
above $60.

› Mining: 
Newalta is a leader in the treatment and 
remediation of the tailings produced 
from the use of mining to extract 
product in the oil sands, where we 
operate facilities under contract for 
major mining customers. In 2017, we 
anticipate no major changes to our 
operating profile in this segment but 
also no material increase in activity 
until 2018 and beyond depending on 
changes to the regulatory environment.

UNLOCKING THE POTENTIAL  
IN OUR BUSINESS MODEL

We believe there are two key reasons 
to be optimistic as we enter a period of 
recovery for the industry in 2017. 

One, Newalta has inherent operating 
leverage. The operating leverage 
recovery for Newalta emerges and 
gains momentum as today’s more 
stabilized oil prices incentivize our 
customers to increase activity. We will 
consequently capture higher volumes to 
feed our lean and efficient operations. 
The recovery will not be uniform and 
will likely be gradual, but our low cost of 
doing business is sustainable and will 
create margin flow through. 

Two, segments of our markets are 
recovering on higher wTI oil prices 
and we have capabilities in those 
segments. As noted above, we believe 
the recovery will be uneven across the 
areas we serve, but we consider this a 
much improved state of affairs from a 
year ago. To illustrate the variability of 
the recovery, below is our assessment 
of how various elements of our markets 
will perform in 2017. 

› Solids control: 
Utilization of our Drill Site assets, 
which support solids control work at rig 
sites in the WCSB and in the Bakken, 
Marcellus, Niobrara and Permian plays, 
is approaching pre-downturn activity 
levels. Higher utilization primarily 
reflects an increase in market share 
through demonstrated operational 
excellence built around our data 
acquisition and real-time optimization  
of the solids control process. 

As well, we are making headway in 
transitioning customers in the WCSB 
toward a model of relying on Newalta 
to operate the solids control process 
versus the past approach where rig 
operators rented equipment. This is 
creating opportunities for Newalta to 
demonstrate our operational expertise. 



HEAVY OIL wASTE PROCESSING FACILITY 
FORT MCMURRAY, ALBERTA

Based on a WTI price forecast of $45 
to $60 per barrel, we anticipate annual 
Adjusted EBITDA of between $40 
million and $55 million in 2017. We 
expect to be within a range of cash 
flow neutrality for 2017 as a whole, 
which is the key determinant of financial 
sustainability and the springboard to the 
positive cash flow model we envision in 
future years.

We appointed Linda Dietsche as 
our Chief Financial Officer, effective 
January 2017. Linda has been with 
Newalta since 2003 and has extensive 
finance experience including leadership 
in the areas of bank and debtholder 
relations, credit facility renewals and 
debenture financings. She succeeds 
Michael Borys, who was instrumental  
in positioning Newalta to weather  
the downturn and to prosper as the 
market recovers. 

I thank our employees for their 
commitment and all stakeholders, 
including our many customers, for  
your support of Newalta. 

While the downturn caused us to be 
smaller, it has also translated into us 
becoming tougher, faster and more 
aggressive in exploiting our competitive 
advantage as a leader in engineered 
environmental solutions.

Yours sincerely,

John Barkhouse
President and Chief Executive Officer

CONCLUSION

NEWALTA IS 
READY TO REALIzE 

SIGNIFICANT 
OPERATING 

LEVERAGE WHICH 
I ExPECT WILL 

DRIVE ATTRACTIVE 
RETURNS FOR OUR 

SHAREHOLDERS. 



MODULAR PROCESSING FACILITY 
jOHNSONS CORNER, NORTH DAKOTA
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rePorT on 
susTAInABILITY

  

These results reflect our values-
driven culture where our people hold 
themselves and their colleagues 
accountable for appropriate behaviours. 

Newalta supports safe practices 
with training, the provision of proper 
equipment and the use of preventative 
measures such as Vital 9 and safety 
observations. Vital 9 is a watch list of 
the nine behaviours that led to more 
than 95 percent of safety incidents at 
Newalta over the previous three-year 
period. We updated Vital 9 in 2016, 
encouraged our employees to record 
safety observations using Vital 9 – 
which they did more than 5,000 times  
– and took corrective actions using  
their feedback. 

We make incident and incident 
investigation data available in real-time 
to all employees through an electronic 
dashboard. This level of visibility 
and the requirement to complete 
investigations quickly so that findings 
can prevent future incidents add to our 
culture of accountability. 

Each quarter, we celebrate safety 
and environmental performance 
with Excellence Awards. In 2016, we 
hosted our first employee Safety Day 
which included a townhall focused 
exclusively on safety best practices and 
culture. Facilities that won the coveted 
President’s Award and some of our 
longest-standing employees who have 
never had a lost-time incident over their 
careers were highlighted. 

Innovation at the facility level is critical 
to advancing safety. In 2016, our team 
in Brooks, Alberta used a drone to take 
aerial photos of our operation that are 
shared so contractors can more safely 
navigate our site. Our U.S. Northeast 
Drill Site team in Pennsylvania noted 
that moving carbon steel barite hoppers 
used on centrifuges was a potential 
hazard and, through re-engineering, 
reduced hopper weight by 300 percent.

SAFETY

Safety is an ethical and operational 
imperative for everyone at Newalta. 
Safety is also a chief concern for our 
customers and the communities we 
serve. Our business success directly 
depends on operating safely and  
in compliance with all regulations 
across our facilities and on our 
customers’ sites.

In 2016, Newalta recorded its safest 
year on record. 

› Total Recordable Injury 
Frequency (TRIF) was 0.6, a 
significant improvement over 2015’s 
rate of 1.0. TRIF refers to the number 
of people injured per 100 employees 
to the extent they could not perform 
their regular work duties.

› Lost-Time Injury Frequency 
(LTIF) was 0 for a second year 
running. LTIF refers to the number 
of people for every 100 employees 
whose injury precludes them  
from working for at least one day 
post injury.

IN A  
CHALLENGING 
YEAR WHERE 

DIFFICULT 
CHOICES WERE 

MADE, NEWALTA 
REMAINED 

TRUE TO OUR 
CORPORATE 
VALUES AS A 
RESPONSIBLE 

BUSINESS.

LOST-TIME  
INJURY FREQUENCY

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

0.1

0.2

0.1 0.0 0.0

TOTAL RECORDABLE  
INJURY FREQUENCY

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

2.5

1.7
1.4

1.0 0.6

NEWALTA 
MAINTAINED 
OUR PLACE 

AMONG 
CANADA’S 
EMERGING 

SUSTAINABILITY 
LEADERS WITH 
SELECTION AS  

A FUTURE 

40
RESPONSIBLE 
COMPANY BY 
CORPORATE 

KNIGHTS
7

OUR BUSINESS 
SUCCESS DIRECTLY 

DEPENDS  
ON OPERATING 

SAFELY



We had many examples of 
environmental leadership within  
our operations in 2016. Our U.S. 
Northwest Drill Site team in Colorado 
introduced a change to how it operated 
its centrifuges to capture more oil 
trapped on drill cuttings with this 
effort reducing solids going to landfill 
and minimizing costs for customers. 
Employees from Environmental 
Services found ways to direct more of 
the resulting demolition materials such 
as metals, concrete and asphalt from 
their projects in Alberta and B.C. to 
recycling options as opposed to being 
disposed of in landfills.

Remediation of past operations is a 
responsibility we also take seriously. 
In 2016, we continued the multi-year 
remediation of a former land treatment 
facility at Drayton Valley, Alberta where 
we have now planted 21,500 aspen 
trees as well as hundreds of willow, 
poplar and dogwood cuttings. Along 
with our environmental consultant Tetra 
Tech, we submitted the results of this 
work to the Consulting Engineers of 
Alberta’s annual awards program and 
were recognized with an award of merit. 

ENVIRONMENT

Newalta is in the business of reducing 
our customers’ waste streams, 
conserving resources and helping  
them to comply with stringent 
environmental rules. 

In 2016, we recovered 1.3 million 
barrels of crude oil from waste without 
drilling a single well. If one number 
captures the essence of Newalta’s 
business purpose for customers, oil 
recovered is it. 

Internally, we also continued to strive for 
sustainable practices and behaviours. 

In 2016, our energy consumption was 
664,000 gigajoules, down 6 percent 
from 705,000 gigajoules in 2015. 
Lower volumes received at our facilities 
were the most significant contributor, 
but we also benefited from process 
improvements including the reduction 
in natural gas burned at our Elk Point, 
Alberta facility through temperature 
adjustments to the oxidizing process. 

Water conservation and recovery are 
priorities. Total water consumption in 
2016 was 121,014 cubic metres, down 
from 123,990 cubic metres in 2015 as 
we processed less fluid volume but 
also recycled more blow down water 
at our Gordondale, Alberta facility and 
invested in new technology at the Fort 
St. John, British Columbia facility to 
reduce fresh water usage.

In 2016, we recycled or recovered 
8,579 cubic metres of water in our 
processes (representing 7 percent of 
water used) compared with 10,790 
cubic metres in 2015 (9 percent of all 
water used). 

We put specific focus on eliminating 
spills and emissions and dramatically 
improved our performance by investing 
in new equipment and reinforcing our 
best practice management across 
Newalta branches. Recordable 
spill volume was 1.62 cubic metres 
compared with 38.3 cubic metres in 
2015. Managing emissions is more 
complex, but we continue to actively 
work on improving results. 

lonG-tERM 
REMEDIATION 
OF A FORMER 

LAND TREATMENT 
FACILITY EARNED 

NEWALTA 
RECOGNITION 

FROM THE 
CONSULTING 

ENGINEERS OF 
ALBERTA 

WATER CONSUMED
(thousands of cubic metres)

149
124 121 2014 

2015
2016

9

2014 
2015
2016

WATER RECYCLED
(thousands of cubic metres)

18

11

0.1

2014 
2015
2016

WATER USE EFFICIENCY
(volume of water consumed/ 
volume of crude oil recovered)

0.4

0.1

3

2014 
2015
2016

RECORDABLE SPILLS

5

8

8
2014 
2015
2016

RECORDABLE EMISSIONS

6

14

WE RECOVER 
MORE THAN ONE 
MILLION BARRELS 

OF CRUDE OIL 
ANNUALLY

ENERGY CONSUMED
(thousands of gigajoules)

856
705 664

2014 
2015
2016
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employee benefits while delivering 
better technology and streamlined 
processes. As a result, we saved 
employees an average of more than 
$200 per year in premiums and cut 
Newalta’s costs by $600,000 over  
three years. 

We maintained timely and honest 
communication. Our CEO stood 
accountable for our actions through 
regular employee townhall meetings. 
We used our internal intranet site 
to highlight business developments 
frequently. We shared our successes, 
challenges and strategies through 
our employee newsletter which was 
recognized in 2016 by the Academy  
of Interactive and Visual Arts.

The past two years have not been 
business as usual. But the people of 
Newalta showed why they are industry 
leaders through their resilience, 
dedication and teamwork.

COMMUNITIES 

Newalta believes that teamwork builds 
better communities, inside and outside 
our business. It is why we encourage 
our people to participate together in 
helping charitable causes. 

Our long-running United Way  
campaign is a centerpiece of our 
efforts. Employees in Calgary and 
Denver raised $160,000 in 2016 
through a variety of grassroots events. 

We put special emphasis on helping 
the Red Cross raise funds to 
help victims of the Fort McMurray 
wildfires. This complemented broader 
community support in the region such 
as investments in the Fort McMurray 
Family Crisis Centre, the local YMCA 
and the Stepping Stones program for 
at-risk youth.

Our Calgary employees served 
breakfasts to the homeless at the 
local Drop-in Centre and dinners at 
the Ronald McDonald House. Our 
Stettler, Alberta employees organized 
Newalta’s support of a local community 
park project. Our Drill Site business 
unit collected donations for local 
families in need in Leduc, Alberta. Our 
Calgary Environmental Services branch 
volunteered their time and expertise to 
the Waldron Conservation Project to 
remove barriers from wildlife corridors.

In keeping with our focus on health, 
a team of Newalta cyclists from Red 
Deer, Leduc, Fort McMurray and 
Calgary pedalled 200 kilometres 
and raised $54,000 for Enbridge’s 
Ride to Conquer Cancer event. 
Employees participated in the Gordie 
Howe Alzheimer’s Pro-Am Hockey 
Tournament and raised $34,000 for 
this important cause. Our team in 
Alida, Saskatchewan participated in 
fundraising to re-build the town’s local 
ice rink that was lost to flooding. 

In total, we contributed more than 
$500,000 to community initiatives as 
well as countless volunteer hours.

PEOPLE

We are proud of how our employees 
worked together and supported each 
other over the past year in the face of 
trying business conditions.

To preserve jobs and cash and reduce 
Newalta’s cost structure, our employees 
took salary reductions of between 5 and 
10 percent in 2016. 

Despite this and even though layoffs 
reduced the size of our workforce by 20 
percent during the year, employees did 
more for customers. As a result of their 
efforts, Newalta won new customer 
business while maintaining and in some 
cases growing our market share. 

Employees also took ownership for 
personal skills development by making 
substantial use of Newalta’s learning 
tools. Newalta’s e-Learning program 
garnered a Skillsoft innovation award 
in recognition of organizational agility 
in delivering safety compliance training. 
We also enhanced our online Learning 
Hub in 2016 by providing access to 
more leadership training and reference 
material. Employees completed more 
than 115 self-driven, development-
specific online courses during the year. 

For these reasons and more, 
our people deserve the credit for 
positioning Newalta to recover. 

As an employer, our survival strategies 
did not alter our values. In 2016, 
we provided professional transition 
services for affected employees. As 
markets improved in the latter part of 
the year, we re-hired a number of laid-
off employees. When wildfires forced 
an almost two-month evacuation of Fort 
McMurray, Alberta and the suspension 
of our local operations in the region, we 
offered financial support to our people 
including regular paycheques and 
reimbursements for living expenses. 

In recognition of our new size and 
structure, we opted to change our 
Canadian benefits provider so that 
we could maintain the value of our 

NEWALTA  
WAS PROUD 
TO ACCEPT A 

SUSTAINABILITY 
AWARD FROM 
THE CALGARY 

WOMEN’S 
EMERGENCY 
SHELTER FOR 

23
YEARS OF 

SUPPORT TO 
THIS VITAL 

COMMUNITY 
SERVICE 
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 47 finanCial statEMEnts
51 nOtEs tO thE COnsOlidatEd finanCial statEMEnts

“OUR ACTIONS  
IN THE PAST YEAR 
SENT A STRONG 
SIGNAL TO ALL 

STAKEHOLDERS, 
INCLUDING OUR 
LENDERS, THAT 

NEWALTA IS HERE  
TO STAY AND 

CAN BE TRUSTED 
TO DO WHAT IS 

NECESSARY  
TO ENSURE  

FUTURE SUCCESS.”
Linda Dietsche 

Executive Vice President 
and Chief Financial Officer



11 

NEWALTA CORPORATION 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
 
 
Three months and year ended December 31, 2015 and 2016 
 

The following management’s discussion and analysis (“MD&A”) is a review of the financial position and operational results of Newalta 
Corporation (“Newalta”). The MD&A should be read in conjunction with (i) the audited consolidated Financial Statements of Newalta, and the 
notes thereto (“Financial Statements”), for year ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, (ii) the Financial Statements of Newalta and notes 
thereto and MD&A of Newalta for the year ended December 31, 2015, and (iii) the most recently filed Annual Information Form of Newalta. 
The Financial Statements of the Corporation are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”), which are 
the generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”) for public Canadian companies and are available on SEDAR (www.sedar.com). 
Information for the three months and year ended December 31, 2016, along with comparative information for 2015, is provided.  

This MD&A is dated February 23, 2017, and takes into consideration information available up to that date. Throughout this document, unless 
otherwise noted, all currency is stated in Canadian dollars and n/m indicates the percentage change is not meaningful.  

NEWALTA – WHO WE ARE 
Newalta is a leading provider of innovative engineered environmental solutions that enable customers to reduce disposal, enhance recycling 
and recover valuable resources from oil and gas exploration and production waste streams. We simplify the critical challenges of sustainable 
environmental practices through the use of advanced processing capabilities deployed through a differentiated business model. We serve 
customers onsite directly at their operations and through a network of locations throughout North America. Our proven processes and 
excellent record of safety make us the first-choice provider of sustainability-enhancing services for oil and gas customers. With a highly skilled 
team of people, a two-decade track record of innovation and a commitment to commercializing new solutions, Newalta is positioned for 
sustained future growth and improvement. We are Sustainability SimplifiedTM. 

Our business is comprised of two operating divisions and two business units within each of the divisions: 

Heavy Oil Division 
• Facilities  
• Onsite 

Oilfield Division 
• Facilities 
• Drilling Services 

 
 

  

http://www.sedar.com/
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HEAVY OIL 
Heavy Oil includes eight facilities to serve both the oil sands in Alberta and the conventional heavy oil region in Alberta and Saskatchewan. 
We began working in the heavy oil industry over 20 years ago when we introduced centrifugation as a solution to treat waste oil emulsions. 
The business has expanded from processing heavy oil waste at facilities in our network to include long-term contracts to process waste on our 
customers’ site. Leveraging our facilities as staging areas and piloting and commercializing processing programs, we deliver a broad range of 
specialized services at numerous customer sites.  

The following tables describe our Heavy Oil business units: 

Facilities 
SERVICES PROVIDED WASTE STREAMS FACTORS IMPACTING RESULTS 

Process oilfield-generated wastes 
including treatment, water disposal, 
salt cavern disposal, and landfilling, 
as well as the sale of recovered 
crude oil to our account. 

Slop and slop oil from steam-assisted 
gravity drainage (“SAGD”) and Cold 
Heavy Oil Production with Sand 
(“CHOPS”), wastewater and 
associated by-products, tank bottom 
emulsions, turnaround waste from 
storage, terminal or battery facilities. 

Production activity from SAGD and CHOPS drives the 
amount and makeup of waste generated by customers. 

Given high decline rates for CHOPS wells, the rate of new 
wells drilled is a leading indicator of CHOPS waste 
volumes.  

Crude oil prices impact the price we receive for the crude 
oil recovered to our account from waste volumes and can 
impact future production activity. Western Canadian 
Select (“WCS”) is our heavy crude oil industry 
benchmark. 

Onsite 
SERVICES PROVIDED WASTE STREAMS FACTORS IMPACTING RESULTS 

Provide specialized onsite services 
using centrifugation or other 
processes for heavy oil producers 
involved in heavy oil mining and in 
situ production (i.e. SAGD). 

Mature fine tailings (“MFT”) and other 
oil sands mining waste, slop oil and 
lime sludge from SAGD production. 

Number and scope of projects and contracts are directly 
impacted by our ability to attract and retain customers 
with existing operations and new heavy oil operations as 
they come on stream. 

Generally, these services have no direct commodity price 
exposure.  

Timing of projects and contracts, since the onsite services 
we provide generally cannot be performed during the 
winter months. 

Level of investment in SAGD and oil sands mining by our 
customers. 
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OILFIELD 
Oilfield includes an integrated network of over 35 locations to service key markets in western Canada and the U.S. 

The following tables describe our Oilfield business units: 

Facilities 
SERVICES PROVIDED WASTE STREAMS FACTORS IMPACTING RESULTS 

Process oilfield-generated wastes 
including water disposal and 
landfilling, as well as the sale of 
recovered crude oil to our account. 

Drilling-related waste includes waste 
from cuttings, drilling mud, frac fluids 
and completions. 

Production-related waste includes tank 
bottom emulsions, waste from well 
work-overs, spills, and turnaround 
waste from storage, terminal or battery 
facilities. 

Drilling activity, including metres drilled and drilling 
techniques, will impact the volume and makeup of waste 
received. The level of completions activity also impacts 
the volume and mix of waste received. 

Ongoing production activity drives the makeup of waste 
generated by our customers and accounts for 
approximately 55% of our waste volume. 

Midstream services include 
processing production fluids 
(custom treating), clean oil 
terminalling and produced water 
disposal.  

 The stage of development or expansion of plays impacts 
demand for our midstream services. In the early stages, 
infrastructure limitations drive volumes to our facilities. As 
takeaway infrastructure is established, volumes to our 
facilities decline. 

  Crude oil prices impact the price we receive for the crude 
oil recovered to our account from waste volumes. In 
Canada, Canadian Light Sweet (“CLS”) is our 
conventional crude oil industry benchmark and in the 
U.S., West Texas Intermediate (“WTI”) is our crude oil 
industry benchmark. 

Drilling Services 
SERVICES PROVIDED FACTORS IMPACTING RESULTS 

DRILL SITE  

Provide the supply and operation of drill site processing equipment, including 
equipment for solids control and drill cuttings management. 

Drill site utilization is impacted by the number of active 
drilling rigs and the number of days of drilling activity in the 
markets we serve. Results are impacted by changes in 
drilling activity in the respective plays we serve as 
indicated by active rigs and changes in our market share 
and operations. 

ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES  

Provide environmental services comprised of environmental projects, drilling 
waste management services and site remediation. 

Demand for environmental services is impacted by oil and 
gas activity levels and customers’ capital budgets.  
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STRATEGY  
Over the last two years during the industry downturn, we focused on protecting our balance sheet by proactively managing operating cash 
flows, streamlining processes, and managing costs to maximize liquidity and flexibility. 

As we enter 2017 in a recovering market, we will maintain our focus on strengthening our balance sheet and financial flexibility. Our long-term 
vision remains fundamentally unchanged; we will leverage our core competencies, drive improved returns from our investments and grow 
profitable revenue streams, both organically and through acquisitions.  

Our strategy will focus on the following: 

STRATEGY STRATEGY DESCRIPTION 

CUSTOMER DRIVEN VALUE-ADDED 
SOLUTIONS – Sustainability SimplifiedTM 

Develop an integrated service offering at each stage of drilling, completions and production 
and create value through product recovery; continue to move processing closer to source 
to optimize logistics. 

Leverage core competencies in centrifugation, onsite processing and project management 
to deploy innovative solutions to provide value to our customers. 

Increase market position in SAGD and mining by establishing technically differentiated and 
contracted relationships with customers. 

NORTH AMERICAN INFRASTRUCTURE 
EXPANSION  

Expand our operating footprint in the Western Canadian Sedimentary Basin (“WCSB”) 
where we have an established network. Establish a presence with scale in high oil 
producing areas in the U.S. 

OPERATIONAL EXCELLENCE Implement a structured methodology to improve performance in the significant areas of our 
business such as utilization, process efficiency and innovation.  

 
We are subject to a number of risks and uncertainties in carrying out our activities including market conditions, ability to expand the business, 
competition, regulation, and the ability to attract and retain personnel. A complete list of our risk factors is disclosed in our most recently filed 
Annual Information Form.  

INDUSTRIAL SALE 
In February 2015, we completed the sale of our Industrial Division. As a result, we have defined our Industrial Division as “Discontinued 
Operations”, the remaining operations as “Continuing Operations” and the total Discontinued Operations and Continuing Operations as 
“Combined Operations”. In accordance with the requirements of IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations, 
income, expenses and cash flow provided and used associated with the business that was sold have been classified as Discontinued 
Operations in the Financial Statements for the periods presented. Unless otherwise noted, commentary and the financial results will refer  
to Continuing Operations. 
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FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION 
Certain statements contained in this document constitute "forward-looking information" as defined under applicable securities laws. When 
used in this document, the words "may", "would", "could", "will", "intend", "plan", "anticipate", "believe", "estimate", "expect", "potential", 
"strategy", "target" and similar expressions, as they relate to Newalta Corporation and the subsidiaries of Newalta Corporation, or their 
management, are intended to identify forward-looking information. In particular, forward-looking information included or incorporated by 
reference in this document includes information with respect to: 

• future operating and financial results; 
• business prospects and strategy including related timelines; 
• capital expenditure programs and other expenditures; 
• realization of anticipated benefits from the sale of the Industrial Division including the ability to reinvest the net proceeds of 

disposition in a timely and efficient manner; 
• realization of anticipated benefits of growth capital investments, acquisitions, divestitures and our innovation and process 

development initiatives; 
• realization of anticipated benefits from the implementation of cost rationalization initiatives including the anticipated value and 

sustainability of the cash savings from such initiatives; 
• anticipated industry activity levels; 
• anticipated commodity prices; 
• expected demand for our services; 
• expected expansion opportunities for our business; 
• the amount of dividends declared or payable in the future; 
• our projected cost structure; and 
• expectations and implications of changes in legislation.  

Expected future financial and operating performance and related assumptions are set out under “Outlook & Operating Leverage”. 

Such information reflects our current views with respect to future events and are subject to certain risks, uncertainties and assumptions, 
including, without limitation: 

• strength of the oil and gas industry, including drilling activity; 
• general market conditions; 
• fluctuations in commodity prices for oil and the price we receive for our recovered oil; 
• fluctuations in interest rates and exchange rates; 
• financial covenants in our debt agreements that may restrict our ability to engage in transactions or to obtain additional financing;  
• success of our growth, acquisition and innovation and process development strategies including integration of businesses and 

processes into our operations and potential liabilities from acquisitions; 
• our ability to secure future capital to support and develop our business, including the issuance of additional common shares; 
• the highly regulated nature of the environmental services and waste management business in which we operate; 
• dependence on our senior management team and other operations management personnel with waste industry experience; 
• the competitive environment of our industry in Canada and the United States; 
• possible volatility of the price of, and the market for, our common shares, and potential dilution for shareholders in the event of a 

sale of additional shares;  
• potential operational and safety risks and hazards, obtaining insurance for such risks and hazards on reasonable financial terms and 

potential failure of meeting customer safety standards; 
• the seasonal nature of our operations; 
• risk of pending and future legal proceedings;  
• risk to our reputation; 
• our ability to attract, retain and integrate skilled employees; 
• open access for new industry entrants and the general unprotected nature of technology used in the waste industry; 
• costs associated with operating our landfills; and  
• such other risks or factors described from time to time in reports we file with securities regulatory authorities. 

By its nature, forward-looking information involves numerous assumptions, known and unknown risks and uncertainties, both general and 
specific, that contribute to the possibility that the predictions, forecasts, projections and other forward-looking information will not occur. Many 
other factors could also cause actual results, performance or achievements to be materially different from any future results, performance or 
achievements that may be expressed or implied by such forward-looking information and readers are cautioned that the foregoing list of 
factors is not exhaustive. Should one or more of these risks or uncertainties materialize, or should assumptions underlying the forward-looking 
information prove incorrect, actual results may vary materially from those described herein as intended, planned, anticipated, believed, 
estimated or expected. Furthermore, the forward-looking information contained in this document is made as of the date of this document and, 
in each case, is expressly qualified by this cautionary statement. Unless otherwise required by law, we do not intend, or assume any 
obligation, to update any such forward-looking information. 
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RECONCILIATION OF NON-GAAP MEASURES 
The following MD&A contains references to certain financial measures that do not have any standardized meaning prescribed by IFRS and 
may not be comparable to similar measures presented by other corporations or entities. These financial measures are identified and defined 
below. 

“Adjusted EBITDA” and “Adjusted EBITDA per share” are measures of our operating profitability. Adjusted EBITDA is defined as net earnings 
(loss) before depreciation and amortization, finance charges, income tax, stock-based compensation, impairment, restructuring and other 
related costs, and gains or losses on embedded derivatives.  

Management believes that Adjusted EBITDA provides improved continuity with respect to the comparison of our operating results over a 
period of time and, as such, is an important indicator of the company’s ability to generate future operating profitability. Adjusted EBITDA 
provides an indication of the results generated by our principal business activities prior to: 

• how these activities are financed; 
• how the results are taxed in various jurisdictions; 

• non-cash charges (such as impairment, depreciation, amortization and gains or losses on embedded derivatives); 

• charges outside the normal course of business (such as restructuring and other related costs); 

• charges that introduce volatility unrelated to operating profitability by virtue of the impact of external factors (such as stock-based 
compensation which fluctuates with changes in our share price); and 

• charges that are non-recurring in nature. 

Adjusted EBITDA is derived from the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income (loss). Adjusted EBITDA per share is 
derived by dividing Adjusted EBITDA by the basic weighted average number of shares outstanding for the respective periods. 

Adjusted EBITDA from Continuing Operations is calculated as follows: 

 
Three months ended  

Decemeber 31,  
Year ended 

December 31, 

($000s except per share data) 2016 2015 2016 2015 

Net loss from Continuing Operations (75,346) (116,697) (158,476) (166,027) 

Add back:     

 Depreciation and amortization(1)  17,939 15,063 61,360 60,866 

 Stock-based compensation(2) 297 (165) 3,849 (3,541) 

 Restructuring and other related costs (459) 2,170 23,939 30,316 

 Impairment  56,030 119,603 60,749 134,397 

 Finance charges (1,926) 7,953 26,594 28,844 

 Embedded derivative (gain) loss  (11) (10) 1,527 392 

 Income tax expense (recovery) 14,962 (21,742) 2,310 (30,633) 

Adjusted EBITDA 11,486 6,175 21,852 54,614 

Weighted average number of shares 88,148 56,237 78,557 56,221 

Adjusted EBITDA per share ($) 0.13 0.11 0.28 0.97 
(1) Includes non-cash gains or losses on asset disposal and other non-cash charges. 
(2) Non-cash stock-based compensation was $211 and $3,557 for the three months and year ended December 31, 2016, respectively [($282) and ($4,728) for the three months and year ended December 31, 

2015, respectively]. 

 
“Divisional EBITDA” provides an indication of the results generated by the division’s principal business activities prior to how activities are 
financed and assets are amortized or impaired. Divisional EBITDA is calculated including directly attributable costs (such as divisional 
executive, business development, and customer service and sales) prior to the allocation of all non-direct general and administrative (“G&A”) 
costs, restructuring and other related costs or stock-based compensation.  

Management believes that Divisional EBITDA provides improved continuity with respect to the comparison of our divisional operating results 
over a period of time and, as such, is also an important indicator of the company’s ability to generate future divisional operating profitability. 
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Divisional EBITDA is derived from (loss) earnings before income taxes from Continuing Operations as follows: 

 
Three months ended 

December 31, 
Year ended  

December 31, 

($000s except per share data) 2016 2015 2016 2015 

Loss before income taxes  (60,384) (138,439) (156,166) (196,660) 

Add back:     

 Depreciation and amortization(1) 17,939 15,063 61,360 60,866 

 Stock-based compensation(2) 297 (165) 3,849 (3,541) 

 Restructuring and other related costs (459) 2,170 23,939 30,316 

 Impairment 56,030 119,603 60,749 134,397 

 Finance charges (1,926) 7,953 26,594 28,844 

 Embedded derivative (gain) loss (11) (10) 1,527 392 

Adjusted EBITDA 11,486 6,175 21,852 54,614 

Add back:     

 G&A 7,690 10,659 31,060 45,464 

Divisional EBITDA 19,176 16,834 52,912 100,078 

 Heavy Oil 11,571 10,715 33,709 55,194 

 Oilfield 7,605 6,119 19,203 44,884 
(1) Includes non-cash gains or losses on asset disposal and other non-cash charges. 
(2) Non-cash stock-based compensation was $211 and $3,557 for the three months and year ended December 31, 2016, respectively [($282) and ($4,728) for the three months and year ended December 31, 

2015, respectively]. 

 
“Total Debt” is defined as the sum of the amount drawn on the Credit Facility, Letters of Credit, Finance Lease Obligations and Senior 
Unsecured Debentures less Cash on hand. Refer to “Liquidity and Capital Resources” section for calculation.  

References to Adjusted EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA per share, Divisional EBITDA, and Total Debt throughout this document have the 
meanings set out above. 
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SELECT ANNUAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION(1)  

 
    

($000s except per share data)     2016 2015 2014 

Continuing Operations       
Revenue    205,449 327,584 495,331 

General & Administrative    31,060 45,464 66,615 

Net loss    (158,476) (166,027) (12,372) 

    - per share ($) basic and diluted    (2.02) (2.95) (0.22) 

Adjusted EBITDA(2)    21,852 54,614 128,930 

    - per share ($)    0.28 0.97 2.31 

Maintenance capital expenditures(2)    8,152 11,900 25,424 

Growth capital expenditures (2)(3)    6,683 63,047 146,428 

Dividends declared    - 24,600 27,100 

    - per share ($)(2)    - 0.438 0.486 

Dividends paid    3,515 26,809 20,536 

Weighted average shares outstanding    78,557 56,221 55,802 

Shares outstanding, December 31,(4)    88,148 56,237 56,026 

Combined Operations         
Revenue    205,449 369,692 858,413 

Net loss    (158,465) (183,056) (142,673) 

    - per share ($) basic and diluted    (2.02) (3.25) (2.56) 
(1) Refer to Newalta’s Management’s Discussion and Analysis and Consolidated Financial Statements for further information. References to GAAP are synonymous with IFRS and references to Consolidated 

Financial Statements and notes are synonymous with Financial Statements. 
(2) These financial measures do not have any standardized meaning prescribed by GAAP and are therefore unlikely to be comparable to similar measures presented by other issuers. Non-GAAP financial 

measures are identified and defined throughout the attached Management’s Discussion and Analysis. 
(3) Growth capital expenditures are net of 2015 and 2016 contributions from a midstream joint venture partner for its interest in a modular processing facility (“MPF”). 
(4) Newalta had 88,148,148 Shares outstanding as at February 23, 2017.  

 
  



19 

SELECT QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION(1)  

 
  Three months ended 

December 31, 
 

($000s except per share data) (unaudited)    2016 2015 % Change 

Continuing Operations       
Revenue    63,707 64,665 (1) 

General & Administrative    7,690 10,659 (28) 

Net loss    (75,346) (116,697) (35) 

    - per share ($) basic and diluted    (0.85) (2.08) (59) 

Adjusted EBITDA(2)    11,486 6,175 86 

    - per share ($)    0.13 0.11 18 

Maintenance capital expenditures(2)    4,097 1,557 163 

Growth capital expenditures(2)(3)    2,969 5,277 (44) 

Dividends declared    - 3,515 (100) 

    - per share ($)(2)    - 0.063 (100) 

Dividends paid    - 7,029 (100) 

Weighted average shares outstanding    88,148 56,237 57 

Shares outstanding, December 31,(4)    88,148 56,237 57 

Combined Operations        
Revenue    63,707 64,665 (1) 

Net loss    (75,346) (126,364) (40) 

    - per share ($) basic and diluted    (0.85) (2.25) (62) 
(1) Refer to Newalta’s Management’s Discussion and Analysis and Consolidated Financial Statements for further information. References to GAAP are synonymous with IFRS and references to Consolidated 

Financial Statements and notes are synonymous with Financial Statements. 
(2) These financial measures do not have any standardized meaning prescribed by GAAP and are therefore unlikely to be comparable to similar measures presented by other issuers. Non-GAAP financial 

measures are identified and defined throughout the attached Management’s Discussion and Analysis. 
(3) Growth capital expenditures are net of 2015 and 2016 contributions from a midstream joint venture partner for its interest in a MPF. 
(4) Newalta had 88,148,148 Shares outstanding as at February 23, 2017. 
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CORPORATE OVERVIEW 
Net loss from Combined Operations for the quarter was $75.3 million compared to $126.4 million in the prior year. The decrease in loss was 
driven by increased contributions from Continuing Operations and reductions in impairment, finance charges and restructuring and other 
related costs, partially offset by an increase in income taxes and depreciation and amortization.  

CONTINUING OPERATIONS  
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Financial Results 
• Q4 revenue of $63.7 million was flat to prior year. 
• Revenue for the year was $205.4 million, a decrease of 37% from prior year. The decline was primarily driven by reduced 

production waste volumes in Oilfield Facilities and a decline in mining contributions in Heavy Oil Onsite. 
• Net loss in the quarter decreased 35% to $75.3 million compared to prior year. The decrease in loss was primarily driven by reduced 

impairment in 2016. Lower finance charges, operating expenses, restructuring and other related costs, and savings in G&A from our 
rationalization initiatives were partially offset by an increase in depreciation and amortization.  

• Net loss for the year was reduced 5% to $158.5 million compared to prior year, driven by the same factors as the quarter and 
partially offset by an increase in stock-based compensation expense. 

• Adjusted EBITDA for the quarter was $11.5 million compared to $6.2 million in the prior year, representing the first quarterly year-
over-year improvement since the beginning of the downturn, and the third sequential quarter-over-quarter improvement in the year. 
The year-over-year increase was driven by Divisional EBITDA improvements of $2.3 million and G&A savings of $3.0 million, 
primarily due to savings from cost rationalization initiatives. 

• Adjusted EBITDA for the year was $21.9 million, down $32.8 million over prior year driven by a $47.2 million decrease in Divisional 
EBITDA partially offset by G&A savings of $14.4 million. Factors at play throughout the latter half of 2015 carried through 2016, with 
producers shutting in wells, minimizing maintenance activities, and deferring projects and capital spending. 

• In 2016, $27.0 million of the $32.8 million year-over-year change in Adjusted EBITDA was driven by a decline in production-driven 
waste volumes at our Heavy Oil and Oilfield facilities. The remainder of the decline was primarily driven by reduced contributions 
from mining projects and the decline in drilling activity, partially offset by cost savings realized.  

• Our contract model continued to provide steady, predictable cash flow. These contracts generally are not tied directly to commodity 
price changes or drilling activity and provide a solid foundation for our business, particularly in depressed markets. In 2016, 
contracts represented 22% of our revenue.  

 

Heavy Oil 
• In the fourth quarter, Heavy Oil revenue declined by 9% to $26.5 million and net earnings before taxes decreased to a loss of $42.2 

million compared to prior year driven by Onsite operations and asset impairment. Divisional EBITDA increased by 8% over prior 
year to $11.6 million due to gains in cost efficiencies and improved contributions from Facilities offset by Onsite contributions.  

• The fourth quarter represents the first year-over-year Divisional EBITDA improvement in Heavy Oil since the downturn began. 
Further, Divisional EBITDA margins improved by seven percentage points over the prior year. 

• In 2016, Heavy Oil revenues decreased 38% to $90.0 million and net earnings before taxes decreased by $63.0 million to a loss of 
$36.9 million compared to prior year. These declines were driven by the same factors as the quarter. Divisional EBITDA decreased 
by 39% over prior year to $33.7 million due to reduced contributions from Onsite. 
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Oilfield 
• In the fourth quarter, Oilfield revenue increased by 5% to $37.2 million and net loss before taxes decreased by 90% to $9.5 million 

compared to prior year. Divisional EBITDA increased by 24% over prior year to $7.6 million. Improved performance was driven by 
Drilling Services, partially offset by reduced contributions from Oilfield Facilities. Net loss before taxes improved due to impairment 
in 2015.  

• In 2016, Oilfield revenue decreased 37% to $115.5 million compared to prior year primarily due to declines in production-driven 
waste volumes and drilling activity. Net loss before taxes decreased by 76% to $20.4 million compared to prior year due to 
impairment in 2015. Divisional EBITDA declined 57% over prior year to $19.2 million driven by lower contributions from both the 
Oilfield Facilities and Drilling Services business units, primarily due to reduced production waste volumes and drilling activity.  

 

Capital Expenditures 
• Capital expenditures for the three months and year ended December 31, 2016 were $7.1 million and $14.8 million, respectively. 

• In Q3 2016, we acquired our joint venture partner’s 50% interest in one of our modular processing facilities.  

G&A and Restructuring 
• For the three months and year ended December 31, 2016, G&A decreased 28% and 32% to $7.7 million and $31.1 million, 

respectively. The year-over-year improvement reflects the impact of our cost rationalization initiatives.  

• Restructuring and other related costs were in a recovery position of $0.5 million in the fourth quarter, comprised of a $1.9 million 
non-cash recovery in onerous contracts partially offset by employee termination and other costs. For the year, $23.9 million in 
restructuring and other related costs were comprised of $14.7 million of non-cash onerous contracts and $9.2 million of employee 
termination and other costs. 

Impairment  
• Impairment for the quarter and the year ended December 31, 2016 was $56.0 million and $60.7 million, respectively, primarily due 

to impairment of certain Heavy Oil assets. We are actively pursuing opportunities to redeploy these assets to other projects or within 
our facility network; however due to lack of certainty regarding the timing of redeployment, these assets were impaired in the 
quarter. This impairment in no way restricts the operating leverage opportunity available as demand for our Onsite services returns. 
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ACTIONS TAKEN TO PROTECT PROFITABILITY AND OUR BALANCE SHEET 
• In 2016, we completed cost rationalization actions which drove $21 million in annualized Adjusted EBITDA savings ($15 million in 

2016) by eliminating approximately 90 positions across G&A and operations and consolidating office space. These actions, 
combined with our 2015 initiatives, have driven in excess of $60 million in annualized savings over 2014 levels.  

• Reduced capital spending by approximately $60 million compared to 2015 levels.  

• Effective October 31, 2016, we amended our Credit Facility to include a precautionary waiver on our Interest Coverage covenant for 
the fourth quarter of 2016 and reduced the principal borrowing amount by $10 million to $150 million. Management sought the one-
time waiver as a precautionary measure given the lack of visibility to oil prices and activity levels in the near term. We were in 
compliance with the threshold established in the March 1, 2016, amendment and did not require the waiver in Q4. 

• We exercised an option pursuant to our Credit Facility to waive the minimum Interest Coverage covenant threshold for the third 
quarter of 2016.  

• On April 20, 2016, we closed our bought deal and private placement equity financings. The public and private offerings of common 
shares raised total gross proceeds of $54.2 million (net proceeds of $51.2 million). The net proceeds were used to reduce the 
amount drawn on our Credit Facility.  

• Effective March 1, 2016, we amended the terms of our Credit Facility to extend the waiver of our Total Debt to Covenant EBITDA 
covenant to Q1 2018, and revised the Senior Debt to Covenant EBITDA and Interest Coverage thresholds to provide improved 
flexibility in the current economic environment. 

• We suspended our quarterly dividend following the dividend paid to shareholders on January 15, 2016.  

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS  
Net earnings from Discontinued Operations for the quarter and the year ended December 31, 2016 were nil, compared to a net loss of $9.7 
million and $17.0 million in the same periods in the prior year. For further details refer to Note 4 to the Financial Statements. 

 

The following section contains forward-looking information as it outlines our Outlook for 2017. Our Outlook is based on several key 
assumptions including growth capital contributions, commodity prices and activity levels of the industries we serve. Changes to these 
assumptions could cause our actual results to differ materially. We are subject to a number of risks and uncertainties in carrying out our 
activities including market conditions, ability to expand the business, competition, regulation, and the ability to attract and retain personnel.  
A complete list of our risk factors is disclosed in our most recently filed Annual Information Form.  

OUTLOOK & OPERATING LEVERAGE 
Our performance over the last two years was significantly impacted by the decline in oil prices and activity levels in the oil and gas industry. 
Inherent in our business model is the capacity to leverage significant upside with recovery in oil pricing and activity levels with minimal capital 
investment. In a sustained $60 WTI environment with associated activity levels, we would expect Adjusted EBITDA to be in the range of $100 
to $140 million.  

Our view is that recovery, in the form of increased activity (whether drilling, completions or production), will be driven by stability in oil and gas 
prices, which will enable our customers to make capital decisions to invest in the drilling and completion of new wells and reactivation of shut-
in wells. As we see activity levels recover, this will translate into increased production waste volumes being generated. Timing of recovery will 
vary among plays based on their cost profile.  

Our operating leverage is driven by the following factors: 

Crude Oil Prices 
• Crude oil prices directly impact the value of the products we recover from waste.  

• Commodity price stabilization generates confidence amongst producers, impacting their capital budgets, which in turn drives 
increased activity.  
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Drilling Activity 
• Recovery of drilling activity will be determined by the speed at which producers deploy their capital budgets. 

• Drill site performance is driven by active rigs and is the first business line to respond to changes in activity. 

• Wells drilled and completed in the areas we serve drive waste volumes into our facilities. 

• We anticipate the drilling activity in the areas where we operate to recover at different rates depending on the cost profile of the play, 
with shale play activity increasing first and CHOPS being the last to recover. 

Step Change  
• Step – Production is primarily comprised of the net impact of production waste volumes and shifts in waste mix, and to a lesser 

extent, customer pricing and operational efficiencies.  
• We expect to see a lag in recovery of production waste volumes depending on the speed at which producers deploy their 

budgets, including turnarounds and workovers. 
• The composition of waste volumes impacts the degree of processing complexity and the amount of recoverable oil. 

• CHOPS waste volumes are also dependent on the drilling of new wells to replace production volumes lost by their 
naturally steep decline curves. 

• SAGD waste volumes are dependent on the number, timing and length of event-based upsets occurring in the normal 
course of SAGD facility operations. 

• We continue to manage our operational cost structure and collaborate with customers to provide enhanced value 
solutions to mitigate the impact of pricing pressure. 

• Step – Other is comprised of the net impact of contributions from mining contracts and returns from growth capital. 

• Mining contributions are expected to be slower to return as producers focus on quantifying their tailing inventory and 
developing mitigation plans required to meet the Tailings Management Framework. We continue to work with producers to 
develop solutions to meet these requirements.  

• As activity recovers, we expect to realize improving returns on capital investments made in 2014 and 2015. 

Savings from Cost Rationalization 
• Our various initiatives to right-size the organization, streamline cost structures and business processes, and rationalize office space 

has established a lower cost model capable of supporting meaningful improvement in profitability in a recovering environment. 

• Cost rationalization actions taken by management throughout the downturn removed in excess of $60 million in costs on an 
annualized basis from 2014 levels. 

2017 Outlook 
In 2017, we expect to see a return towards normalized quarterly seasonality. Our 2017 Outlook is based on the following assumptions: 

• Improving commodity prices with less volatility than 2016 

• Increased customer capital budgets over 2016 levels, driving drilling activity 

• Recovery of the $4.5 million lost in 2016 from the Fort McMurray wildfires and a modest improvement in production-driven waste 
volumes over prior year 

• Carryover of savings from cost rationalization actions taken in 2016 

Our Q1 and full-year 2017 guidance ranges are: 

• Revenue of $45 million to $55 million for the first quarter and $200 million to $275 million for the full year; and 

• Adjusted EBITDA of $8 million to $10 million for the first quarter and $40 million to $55 million for the full year. 
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The following table outlines the factors we expect to impact Adjusted EBITDA performance in the first quarter and full year of 2017: 

Factor 

 

 
Actual(1) 

 

Assumption(1) 
Expected impact on Adjusted EBITDA  

compared to prior year period(1)  

Q4 and Full Year 2016 Q1 and Full Year 2017 Q1 2017 2017 

West Texas Intermediate (US$/bbl) Q4: $49.16 
2016: $43.19 

Q1 2017: $45 – $55 
2017: $45 – $60   

Canadian Light Sweet (CDN$/bbl)(2) Q4: $60.69 
2016: $52.89 

Q1 2017: $60 – $70 
2017: $55 – $73 $0.5M – $1M ↑ $0.5M – $3.5M ↑ 

Western Canadian Select (CDN$/bbl)(2) Q4: $46.63 
2016: $38.90 

Q1 2017: $45 – $55 
2017: $40 – $55 $1.5M – $2M ↑     $0.5M – $5M ↑ 

Drilling activity(2) over prior year Q4: Flat 
2016: (25%) 

Q1 2017: 20% – 25% 
2017: 20% – 30% $2.5M – $3M ↑      $8M – $12M ↑ 

Step Change(3)  Q4: ($1.7M) 
2016: ($44.2M)  $1M – $1.5M ↑        $5M – $8M ↑ 

Savings from cost rationalization Q4: $5.7M 
2016: $25M              $2.5M ↑        $4M – $5M ↑ 

Adjusted EBITDA Guidance    $8M – $10M $40M – $55M 
(1) M refers to millions. 
(2) Impact derived from annual sensitivities based on 2017 forecast performance and volumes outlined in the “Sensitivities” section. The actual impact from crude oil prices may vary with fluctuations in 

volumes.  
(3) This factor is expected to have an impact on our performance through the year and cannot be quantified on any linear sensitivity. 

Total Debt, Capital & Cash Flow Management 
Throughout the downturn, we proactively structured our business model for a “lower for longer” environment. Our equity financing, 
rationalization initiatives, amended Credit Facility, reduced capital spend and suspension of dividends provided us the liquidity and flexibility to 
operate in the sustained downturn.  

We will continue to manage cash flows to ensure our financing obligations are met and spending is minimized wherever possible. Over the last 
two years, management has focused on moving towards a positive cash flow model. We have made significant progress in moving towards 
this target through proactive management of operating cash flows and cost rationalization initiatives. In 2017, we will maintain our focus on this 
target and expect to be within a range of cash flow neutrality for the year, subject to opportunities that may arise. Management will exercise 
prudent judgment in managing our capital expenditures for the year, aligned with our longer-term cash flow target.  

Our amendments to certain covenants under our Credit Facility provide us with the flexibility to continue to manage our balance sheet 
successfully as we transition through recovery. Managing debt leverage and use of cash and capital are our highest priorities. We will remain 
within our debt covenants throughout 2017. 
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS – HEAVY OIL 

The Heavy Oil division is organized into two business units, Facilities and Onsite. The business units contributed the following to division 
revenue: 

 

 
The following table compares Heavy Oil’s results for the periods indicated: 

   
Three months ended 

December 31,  
 

Year ended 
December 31, 

 

($000s)    2016 2015 % change  2016 2015 % change  

Revenue     26,514 29,265 (9) 89,994 144,692 (38) 

Operating expenses    14,943 18,550 (19) 56,285  89,498 (37) 

Divisional EBITDA    11,571  10,715 8 33,709 55,194 (39) 

Divisional EBITDA as % of revenue    44% 37%  37% 38%  

Depreciation and amortization    8,293 5,045 64 24,317 23,889 2 

Restructuring and other related costs    46 653 (93) 803 2,233 (64) 

Impairment    45,467 1,129 n/m 45,467 2,915 n/m 

Net (loss) earnings before taxes    (42,235) 3,888 n/m (36,878) 26,157 (241) 

Maintenance capital    1,494 834 79 2,683 7,149 (62) 

Growth capital    329 798 (59) 548 23,652 (98) 

Assets employed(1)         207,268 275,967 (25) 
(1) Assets employed is provided to assist management and investors in determining the effectiveness of the use of the assets at a divisional level. Assets employed is the sum of capital assets, intangible 

assets and goodwill allocated to each division. Assets employed as defined does not include capital assets held by Corporate. Corporate assets include information technology and leasehold 
improvements. 

 
Heavy Oil revenue in the quarter decreased by 9% to $26.5 million compared to the prior year. The decline was primarily driven by Onsite 
operations, partially offset by improvements in Facilities. Net loss before taxes in the quarter was $42.2 million compared to earnings of $3.9 
million in the prior year largely due to the impairment of certain Onsite assets. We are actively pursuing opportunities to redeploy these assets 
to other projects or within our facility network; however, due to lack of certainty regarding the timing of redeployment, these assets were 
impaired in the quarter. Divisional EBITDA increased 8% to $11.6 million over prior year due to gains in cost efficiencies and improved 
contributions from Facilities offset by Onsite contributions. The fourth quarter represents the first year-over-year Divisional EBITDA 
improvement in Heavy Oil since the downturn began. Further, Divisional EBITDA margins improved seven percentage points over prior year. 

 
Three months ended 

December 31, 
 Year ended 

December 31, 

 2016 2015 2016 2015 

Facilities  49% 37% 45% 28% 
Onsite 51% 63% 55% 72% 
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In 2016, revenue decreased by 38% compared to prior year driven by the same factors as the quarter. Net earnings before taxes decreased 
$63 million from prior year to a loss of $36.9 million due to impairment and reduced contributions from Onsite. Divisional EBITDA declined 
39% to $33.7 million over prior year driven by reduced contributions from Onsite. 

Contract revenue continued to provide predictable cash flow to our business, generating approximately 50% of Heavy Oil revenue in 2016. 

HEAVY OIL FACILITIES 
Revenue for the quarter increased by 21% over prior year due to higher commodity prices and increased activity at our Fort McMurray facility.  

In 2016, Heavy Oil Facilities revenue remained relatively flat to prior year. Increased revenue from full year operations at our Fort McMurray 
facility was offset by a decline in commodity prices and the impact of the Fort McMurray wildfires.  

Production waste volumes for the quarter and year ended December 31, 2016 were relatively flat to prior year with increases in SAGD 
volumes being offset by lower CHOPS volumes. This change in waste mix received at our facilities drove a 50% and 42% increase in 
recovered crude oil volumes for the quarter and year, respectively. 

We continue to work with our customers to partner through contractual relationships and to work with our suppliers to find cost efficiencies.  

Heavy Oil Facilities Metrics and Industry Drivers 

 
Three months ended 

December 31, 
 

Year ended 
December 31, 

 

 2016 2015 % change 2016 2015 % change 

Recovered crude oil (‘000 bbl)(1) 87 58 50 282 198 42 

Average crude oil price received (CDN$/bbl) 39.53 30.20 31 31.78 38.93 (18) 

Recovered crude oil sales ($ millions) 3.4 1.8 89 9.0 7.5 20 

Western Canadian Select (CDN$/bbl)(2) 46.63 36.86 27 38.90 44.81 (13) 
(1) Represents the total crude oil recovered and sold for our account. 
(2) WCS is a readily available industry benchmark for heavy crude oil.  
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ONSITE 
Revenue for the quarter decreased by 27% over prior year due to lower contributions from mining contracts and a decrease in insitu projects.  

In 2016, Onsite revenue decreased by 53% over 2015, primarily due to the Syncrude MFT contract which remained inactive throughout the 
year. 

Contract revenue from our other mining and SAGD contracts continued to provide predictable cash flow to our business. We expect demand 
for projects to improve as crude oil prices and activity levels recover. 

We have developed relationships with major operators in the oil sands and are in discussions regarding additional onsite opportunities and 
collaborating with our customers to find ways to reduce costs and maximize returns in the current environment. 

Onsite Metrics  

 
Three months ended 

December 31,  
Year ended  

December 31,  

 2016 2015 
Percentage 

point change 2016 2015 
Percentage 

point change 

Contract revenue as % of Onsite revenue 85% 78% 7 84% 80% 4 

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS – OILFIELD 
The Oilfield division is organized into two business units, Facilities and Drilling Services. The business units contributed the following to 
division revenue: 

 

 
  

 
Three months ended 

December 31, 
Year ended 

December 31, 

 2016 2015 2016 2015 

Oilfield Facilities  65% 75% 70% 72% 

Drilling Services 35% 25% 30% 28% 
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The following table compares Oilfield’s results for the periods indicated: 

 

 
Three months ended 

December 31,  
 Year ended 

December 31, 
 

($000s) 2016 2015 % change  2016 2015 % change  

Revenue  37,193 35,400 5 115,455 182,892 (37) 

Operating expenses 29,588 29,281 1 96,252 138,008 (30) 

Divisional EBITDA 7,605 6,119 24 19,203 44,884 (57) 

Divisional EBITDA as % of revenue 20% 17%  17% 25%  

Depreciation and amortization 6,472 6,154 5 24,267 22,964 6 

Restructuring and other related costs 116 1,170 (90) 4,812 4,186 15 

Impairment 10,562 95,555 (89) 10,562 104,467 (90) 

Net loss before taxes (9,545) (96,760) (90) (20,438) (86,733) (76) 

Maintenance capital 2,507 493 n/m 5,054 2,368 113 

Growth capital(1) 2,394 3,259 (27) 4,930 32,711 (85) 

Assets employed(2)        435,419 466,803 (7) 
(1) Growth capital expenditures are net of 2015 and 2016 contributions from a midstream joint venture partner for its interest in an MPF. 
(2) Assets employed is provided to assist management and investors in determining the effectiveness of the use of the assets at a divisional level. Assets employed is the sum of capital assets, intangible 

assets and goodwill allocated to each division. Assets employed as defined does not include capital assets held by Corporate. Corporate assets include information technology and leasehold 
improvements.  

 

Oilfield revenue in the quarter increased 5% over prior year to $37.2 million, as increases in Drilling Services offset a decline at our U.S. 
Oilfield Facilities. Net loss before taxes in the same period improved by 90% to $9.5 million, primarily due to reduced impairment. In Q4, we 
identified certain assets for which we no longer expect to recover their value through future operations and subsequently impaired the carrying 
value of the assets by $10.6 million. Divisional EBITDA increased by 24% over prior year primarily due to cost efficiencies in Oilfield Facilities 
and improved contributions from Drilling Services. Further, Divisional EBITDA margins improved over prior year.  

In 2016, Oilfield revenue declined by 37% to $115.5 million compared to the prior year primarily due to Oilfield Facilities. Net loss before taxes 
for the year improved by 76% primarily due to lower impairment in 2016. Divisional EBITDA for the year decreased by 57% to $19.2 million, 
largely due to declines in production-driven waste volumes and drilling activity compared to the prior year.  

OILFIELD FACILITIES 
In Canada, we have over 25 locations serving the Western Canadian Sedimentary Basin throughout British Columbia, Alberta and 
Saskatchewan. In the U.S., we provide services through our modular processing facilities, strategically located to serve the Bakken play. 

 
THE FOLLOWING TABLE DESCRIBES OUR OILFIELD FACILITIES BUSINESS UNIT: 

Facilities revenue for the quarter decreased 9% compared to prior year, primarily due to lower activity and reduced waste volumes received at 
our U.S. facilities. Canadian Facilities revenue remained flat compared to prior year as increased volume from growth capital was offset by 
lower production-driven activity.  

In 2016, Facilities revenue decreased by 39% compared to prior year primarily as a result of a decline in production waste volumes. 
Performance at our Canadian Facilities was also impacted by a 33% decline in recovered crude oil sales as a result of lower crude oil prices 
and lower recovered volumes due to a change in waste mix. Revenue from U.S. Facilities decreased primarily due to reduced drilling activity 
in the Bakken, where active rigs decreased 64% over prior year. 

We continue to review our cost structure and pricing model, work with our customers to provide customized solutions and collaborate with our 
suppliers to mitigate impacts of our current environment.  

  

 
Three months ended 

December 31, 
 Year ended 

December 31, 

Revenue generated by country  2016 2015 2016 2015 

Canada 98% 88% 96% 84% 

U.S. 2% 12% 4% 16% 
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Oilfield Facilities Metrics and Industry Drivers 

 
Three months ended 

December 31, 
 Year ended 

December 31, 
 

 2016 2015 % change 2016 2015 % change 

Canadian Facilities       

Recovered crude oil (‘000 bbl)(1) 42 43 (2) 140 189 (26) 

Average crude oil price received (CDN$/bbl) 55.60 48.24 15 47.98 52.93 (9) 

Recovered crude oil sales ($ millions) 2.3 2.1 10 6.7 10.0 (33) 

Canadian Light Sweet par price (CDN$/bbl)(2) 60.69 52.49 16 52.89 57.11 (7) 

U.S. Facilities         

Recovered crude oil (‘000 bbl)(1) 1 1 - 3 11 (73) 

Average crude oil price received (CDN$/bbl) 53.72 30.31 77 41.54 32.68 27 

Recovered crude oil sales ($ millions) - - - 0.1 0.4 (75) 

West Texas Intermediate par price (CDN$/bbl)(3) 65.55 56.05 17 56.92 62.12 (8) 
(1) Represents the total crude oil recovered and sold for our account. 
(2) CLS is a readily available industry benchmark for conventional crude oil. 
(3) WTI is a readily available industry benchmark for conventional crude oil sold in the U.S.  
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DRILLING SERVICES 
Drilling Services includes our Drill site services as well as our Environmental Services. We serve the oil and gas industry in western Canada 
and the U.S., with operations primarily in the Marcellus, Bakken, Eagleford, Niobrara and Arklatex plays. Drill site generates between 70% and 
80% of annual Drilling Services revenue.  

 
Q4 2016 Drilling Services revenue increased 46% compared to prior year driven by increases in utilization in both Canada and the U.S. 
Utilization in Q4 2016 increased over prior year despite a decline in active rigs in the areas we serve as a result of our focus on enhanced 
customer value creation.  

In 2016, revenue decreased 32% compared to prior year driven by declines in drilling activity and pricing pressure in both Canada and the 
U.S. throughout the majority of the year. Drill site utilization was significantly impacted by competitive pricing and reduced drilling activity as 
active rigs in the WCSB decreased 35% and active rigs in the areas we serve in the U.S. declined 47%. 

Commencing in the first quarter of 2016 and operating through the remainder of the year, we leveraged our modular assets and mobilization 
expertise to provide an optimized solution on one of Anadarko Petroleum Corporation’s sites in the DJ Basin, as a part of our focus on offering 
enhanced customer value.  

 
 

Three months ended 
December 31, 

 Year ended 
December 31, 

 

 2016 2015 Percentage 
point change 2016 2015 Percentage 

point change 

Drill site utilization – Canada 13% 9% 4 8% 20% (12) 

Drill site utilization – U.S. 33% 24% 9 21% 31% (10) 

Total Drill site utilization 26% 18% 8 16% 27% (11) 

Average equipment available(1) 196  217   208  202   
(1) Average equipment available is the average number of units available to be deployed during the period. 

CORPORATE AND OTHER 

 
Three months ended 

December 31, 
 

Year ended 
December 31, 

 

($000s) 2016 2015 % change 2016 2015 % change 

General and administrative expenses 7,690 10,659 (28) 31,060 45,464 (32) 

G&A as % of revenue  12% 16%  15% 14%  

Stock-based compensation  297  (165) (280) 3,849 (3,541) (209) 

Impairment 56,030 119,603 (53) 60,749 134,397 (55) 

Restructuring and other related costs (459) 2,170 (121) 23,939 30,316 (21) 

Finance charges (1,926) 7,953 (124) 26,594 28,844 (8) 

Embedded derivatives (gain) loss (11)  (10) 10 1,527 392 290 

Total Corporate and Other Expenses 61,621 140,210  (56) 147,718 235,872 (37) 

 
The following section outlines the material changes in the Corporate expenses outlined above.  

  

 
Three months ended 

December 31, 
Year ended 

December 31, 

Revenue generated by country 2016 2015 2016 2015 

Canada  42% 45% 42% 35% 

U.S. 58% 55% 58% 65% 
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G&A 
Q4 2016 and full year G&A decreased 28% and 32% to $7.7 million and $31.1 million, respectively. The improvement reflects our 2015 and 
2016 cost rationalization initiatives. We will continue prudent management of our overheads. 

Stock-Based Compensation 
Stock-based compensation expense of $0.3 million in the quarter was driven primarily by the change in our share price and the passage of 
time. In 2016, the expense of $3.8 million was driven by the same factors as the quarter, as well as the Q1 2016 grant of long-term incentives. 
Cash stock-based compensation expense for the quarter and year was $0.1 million and $0.3 million, respectively compared to $0.1 million and 
$1.2 million in prior year. Stock-based compensation expense fluctuates based on the effects of vesting, volatility in our share price and 
dividend rate changes. 

Impairment  
Impairment for the quarter and the year ended December 31, 2016 was $56.0 million and $60.7 million, respectively, primarily due to 
impairment of certain Heavy Oil assets. We are actively pursuing opportunities to redeploy these assets to other projects or within our facility 
network however, due to lack of certainty regarding the timing of redeployment, these assets were impaired in the quarter. This impairment in 
no way restricts the operating leverage available as demand for our Onsite services returns. For further information, see Note 6 and Note 7 to 
the Financial Statements. 

Restructuring and Other Related Costs 
Restructuring and other related costs for the quarter and year were a recovery of $0.5 million and expense of $23.9 million, respectively. The 
recovery in the quarter was comprised of a $1.9 million non-cash recovery in onerous contracts partially offset by employee termination and 
other costs. In 2016, costs were comprised of $14.7 million of non-cash onerous contract expense and $9.2 million of employee termination 
and other costs. For further information, see Note 5 to the Financial Statements.  

Finance Charges  

 
Three months ended 

December 31, 
 Year ended 

December 31,  

($000s) 2016 2015 % change 2016 2015 % change 

Bank fees and interest 1,629 881 85 6,001 1,733 246 

Debenture interest, accretion of issue costs, 
and other 4,820 4,815 - 19,279 19,276 - 

Finance charges before unwinding of the 
discount(1) 6,449 5,696 13 25,280 21,009 20 

Unwinding of the discount(2) (8,375) 2,257 n/m 1,314 7,835 (83) 

Finance charges (1,926) 7,953 (124) 26,594 28,844 (8) 
(1) Reflects capitalized interest of nil and $80 for Q4 and 2016, respectively, and $149 and $2,355 for Q4 and 2015, respectively. 
(2) Relates to decommissioning liability. 

 
In Q4 2016, finance charges decreased from $8.0 million in the prior year to a recovery of $1.9 million, primarily due to the unwinding of the 
discount rate and changes in estimates, partially offset by increased interest charges on Senior Secured Debt. In 2016, charges decreased by 
$2.3 million over prior year to $26.6 million, driven by the same factors that impacted the quarter.  

Embedded Derivative 
The change in the value of our embedded derivative was nil in Q4 2016 and a loss of $1.5 million for the year compared to prior year. The 
embedded derivative is associated with the early redemption feature for the Series 2 Senior Unsecured Debentures. Gains or losses on the 
embedded derivative have no impact on current or future cash flows and are primarily impacted by the risk free rate, market volatility, and our 
credit spread. For further information see Note 20 to the Financial Statements. 
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Income Tax  

 Three months ended 
December 31, 

 Year ended 
December 31, 

 

($000s) 2016 2015 % change 2016 2015 % change 

Income tax expense (recovery)  14,962 (21,742) (169) 2,310 (30,633) (108) 

Effective tax rate 24.79% 15.71%  1.48% 15.58%  

Statutory tax rate 26.96% 26.14%  26.96% 26.14%  
 
Deferred income tax expense was $15.0 million and $2.3 million, respectively, for the three months and year ended December 31, 2016, 
compared to recoveries of $21.7 million and $30.6 million in the prior year, respectively. The year-over-year changes were primarily driven by 
unrecognized deferred tax assets. In light of uncertainty regarding the timing and extent of recovery and, by extension, uncertainty of timing 
and utilization of our tax pools, we reversed our existing deferred tax asset. At December 31, 2016, there are unrecognized deferred tax 
assets of $78.8 million. 

Our effective rate is impacted by several items including: non-deductible items such as stock-based compensation and the gain or loss on 
embedded derivative; changes in statutory and other rates; varying tax rates in our operating jurisdictions; and unrecognized deferred tax 
assets.  

Loss carry forwards at December 31, 2016, of approximately $216 million in respect of Canadian operations will begin expiring in 2027, and 
$164 million in respect of our U.S. operations will begin expiring in 2029. 

RESULTS OF DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS  
The following table compares results from Discontinued Operations for the periods indicated: 

 
Three months ended 

December 31,  
 Year ended 

 December 31, 
 

($000s) 2016 2015 % change  2016 2015 % change  

Revenue  -  - - - 42,108 (100) 

Earnings (loss) before taxes and loss on sale - 687 (100) - (7,037) (100) 

Pre-tax loss (gain) on sale of Discontinued 
Operations - 13,468 (100) (16) 20,627 (100) 

Income tax (recovery) expense on loss on 
sale - (3,114) (100) 5 (10,635) (100) 

Net (loss) earnings from Discontinued 
Operations - (9,667)  (100) 11 (17,029) (100) 

 
In February 2015, we completed the sale of the Industrial Division. Net (loss) earnings from Discontinued Operations for the three months and 
year ended December 31, 2016, were nil compared to a loss of $9.7 million and $17.0 million in the same periods in the prior year. For further 
information refer to Note 4 to the Financial Statements.  

  



34 

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES 
The term liquidity refers to the speed with which a company’s assets can be converted into cash, or its ability to do so, as well as cash on 
hand. Liquidity risk refers to the risk we will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial obligations that are settled by 
cash or another financial asset. Our liquidity risk may arise due to general day-to-day cash requirements and in the management of our 
assets, liabilities and capital resources. Liquidity risk is managed against our financial leverage to meet obligations and commitments in a 
balanced manner. For further information on liquidity risk management, refer to Note 20 to the Financial Statements. 

Our debt capital structure consists of three instruments with staggered maturity dates: (i) Credit Facility (July 2018); (ii) Senior Unsecured 
Debentures – Series 2 (November 2019) and (iii) Senior Unsecured Debentures – Series 3 (April 2021). 

($000s) December 31, 2016 December 31, 2015 

Use of Credit Facility:   
   Amount drawn on Credit Facility 49,398 57,840 

   Letters of credit 23,234 20,239 

Finance lease obligations 2,113 - 

Cash on hand(1) (1,809) (788) 

 72,936 77,291 

Senior Unsecured Debentures 275,000 275,000 

Total Debt 347,936 352,291 

Unused Credit Facility capacity(2) 77,368 96,921 
(1) Cash on hand can reduce the Senior Secured Debt and Total Debt for covenant calculation purposes. 
(2) Unused Credit Facility capacity is derived from the total amounts drawn, including overdraft balance and letters of credit, and excludes cash on hand and our finance lease obligation.  

 
Working capital at December 31, 2016 was negative $18.0 million (September 30, 2016: negative $15.7 million; December 31, 2015: negative 
$25.2 million).  

We are actively managing working capital through various initiatives including improved collection processes and management of payables. At 
current activity levels, working capital will be sufficient to meet our ongoing commitments and operational requirements of the business. We 
will continue to prudently manage working capital. For further information on credit risk management, refer to Note 20 to the Financial 
Statements. 

Debt Ratings 
DBRS Limited (“DBRS”) and Moody’s Investor Service, Inc. (“Moody’s”) provide a corporate and Senior Unsecured Debentures credit rating. 
In November 2016, based on the impact the decline in oil prices and related activity levels had on our operating results, DBRS downgraded 
our credit rating from B to CCC (high) for our corporate rating and from CCC (high) to CCC (low) for the Senior Unsecured Debentures. 

 

Category DBRS Moody’s 

Corporate Rating CCC (high) Caa1 
Senior Unsecured Debentures CCC (low) Caa2 

SOURCES OF CASH 
Our liquidity needs can be sourced in several ways including: funds from operations, borrowings against or increases in our Credit Facility, 
new debt instruments, the issuance of securities from treasury, return of letters of credit or replacement of letters of credit with other types of 
financial security and proceeds from the sale of assets. 
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Credit Facility 
At December 31, 2016, $77.4 million was available and undrawn to fund capital expenditures and for general corporate purposes, as well as to 
provide letters of credit to third parties for financial security up to a maximum amount of $60 million. The aggregate dollar amount of 
outstanding letters of credit is not categorized in the financial statements as long-term debt; however, the issued letters of credit reduce the 
amount available under the Credit Facility and are included in the definition of Senior Debt and Total Debt for covenant purposes. As at 
December 31, 2016, surety bonds (including performance bonds) to a maximum of $31 million were excluded from the definition of Senior 
Debt and Total Debt under the credit agreement. Surety bonds issued and outstanding totalled $21 million at December 31, 2016.  

Effective March 1, 2016, we amended the terms of our Credit Facility to extend the waiver of our Total Debt to Covenant EBITDA covenant to 
Q1 2018 and to revise the Senior Debt to EBITDA and Interest Coverage covenant thresholds as outlined below:  

(1) Per the October 31, 2016 amendment, our Interest Coverage ratio for Q4 2016 was waived. We did not require this waiver. 

 

At the election of management, the principal borrowing amount was reduced from $175 million to $160 million and the maximum value of 
surety bonds (including performance bonds) excluded from the definition of Total Debt was reduced from $85 million to $31 million. We have 
also made additional adjustments to our covenant package to take into consideration the current economic environment in the industry, 
including a restriction on declaring dividends through the period ending March 31, 2018. 

Effective April 29, 2016, we amended our Credit Facility to replace the Royal Bank of Canada with Export Development Canada as a lender 
under our Credit Facility. 

Effective October 31, 2016, we amended our Credit Facility to include a waiver on our Interest Coverage covenant for the fourth quarter of 
2016 and reduce the principal borrowing amount by $10 million to $150 million. Management sought the one-time waiver as a precautionary 
measure given the lack of good visibility to oil prices and activity levels in the near term. We were in compliance with threshold established in 
the March 1, 2016, amendment and did not require the waiver in Q4.  

The maturity of the Credit Facility is July 12, 2018. We may, at our option, request an extension of the Credit Facility on an annual basis. If no 
request to extend the Credit Facility is made, the entire amount of outstanding indebtedness would be due in full on July 12, 2018.  

We are required to be in compliance with certain financial covenants as defined and calculated in our Credit Facility and as set forth below. At 
December 31, 2016, we were in compliance with all covenants under our Credit Facility. We exercised an option pursuant to our Credit Facility 
to waive the minimum Interest Coverage threshold for the third quarter of 2016. 

 
 

December 31, 2016 

 

December 31, 2015(1) 

Threshold  

December 31, 2016 

Senior Debt(2) to Covenant EBITDA(3) 2.75:1 1.44:1 5.25:1 maximum 
Total Debt(4) to Covenant EBITDA(3) 13.10:1 6.55:1 Waived  

Interest Coverage(5) 1.11:1 2.17:1 Waived 
(1) As defined in the credit agreement governing our Credit Facility in effect on December 31, 2015.  
(2) Senior Debt means the Total Debt less the Senior Unsecured Debentures. Senior Debt as at December 31, 2016 was $72.9 million.  
(3) Covenant EBITDA is a term used to describe EBITDA as defined in the credit agreement governing our Credit Facility and is a non-GAAP measure, the closest measure of which is net earnings. For the 

purpose of calculating the covenant, Covenant EBITDA is defined as the TTM consolidated net income for Newalta before the deduction of interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization, and non-cash 
items (such as non-cash stock-based compensation, onerous leases and gains or losses on asset dispositions) and non-recurring items (such as cash-based restructuring costs and the cash portion of 
onerous lease costs) up to $15 million from Q2 2015 – Q1 2016; $12 million from Q1 2016 – Q4 2016; thereafter reverts to $5 million. Additionally, Covenant EBITDA is normalized for any acquisitions 
or dispositions as if they had occurred at the beginning of the period. As defined and calculated pursuant to the credit agreement governing our Credit Facility, Covenant EBITDA as at December 31, 
2016 was $26.6 million. 

(4) Total Debt comprises outstanding indebtedness under the Credit Facility, including a bank surplus, or overdraft balance; finance lease obligations and the Senior Unsecured Debentures. Total Debt as at 
December 31, 2016 was $347.9 million. 

(5) Covenant is calculated based on Combined Operations. Interest Coverage is calculated by dividing Covenant EBITDA (as defined in footnote 3 prior to normalization for acquisitions and dispositions) by 
the TTM Interest Expense. For the trailing-twelve months ended December 31, 2016, Covenant EBITDA prior to normalizing adjustments of nil was $26.6 million and Interest Expense was $24.0 million.  

 

Our Total Debt was $347.9 million as at December 31, 2016, which reflected a $4.4 million decrease over December 31, 2015. In addition to 
normal course cash flows from operations, the decrease in debt reflects the net proceeds from our equity issuance, partially offset by capital 
expenditures, dividends and operational working capital requirements. 

  

 2016    2017 2018  
 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Thereafter 

Senior Debt (maximum) 5.25:1 4.50:1 4.50:1 3.00:1 3.00:1 3.00:1 3.00:1 

Interest Coverage (minimum)(1) 1.00:1 1.00:1 1.00:1 1.50:1 1.50:1 1.50:1 2.25:1 
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Senior Unsecured Debentures  

Term Series 2(1)(2) Series 3(1)(2) 

Principal $125.0 million $150.0 million 

Interest rate 7.75% 5.875% 

Maturity November 14, 2019 April 1, 2021 

Interest payable (in arrears) May 14 and November 14 each year April 1 and October 1 each year 

Debentures are redeemable at the 
option of Newalta: 
 

In whole or in part, at redemption 
prices expressed as percentages of 
the principal(3) if redeemed during 
the twelve month period beginning 
on November 14 of the years as 
follows: 
• 2016 – 101.938%;  
• 2017 and thereafter – 100%. 

Prior to April 1, 2017 
• Redemption price equal to 105.875% of the principal amount(3)(4) 
or 
• In whole or in part, at a redemption price which is equal to the greater of: 

(a) the Canada Yield Price (as defined in the supplemental trust indenture) 
and  

(b) 101% of the aggregate principal amount of Senior Unsecured Debentures 
redeemed(3) 

After April 1, 2017 
In whole or in part, at redemption prices expressed as percentages of 
the principal(3) if redeemed during the twelve month period beginning 
on April 1 of the years as follows: 
• 2017 – 102.938%;  
• 2018 – 101.958%;  
• 2019 – 100.979%; 
• 2020 and thereafter – 100%. 

(1) If a change of control occurs, Newalta will be required to offer to purchase all or a portion of each debenture holder’s Senior Unsecured Debentures, at a purchase price in cash equal to 101% of the 
principal amount of the Senior Unsecured Debentures offered for repurchase plus accrued interest to the date of purchase. 

(2) The trust indenture requires that Net Cash Proceeds (as defined in the trust indenture) from an asset sale are applied to a combination of capital expenditures, acquisitions of additional assets or a 
permanent reduction in the credit facility within 365 days following receipt of such proceeds. The reinvestment period also includes a period of 180 days prior to the disposition. 

(3) Plus interest to the date of redemption. 
(4) Up to 35% of the aggregate principal amount with the net cash proceeds of one or more public equity offerings. 
 
The outstanding Senior Unsecured Debentures are unsecured senior obligations and rank equally with all other existing and future unsecured 
senior debt and are senior to any subordinated debt that may be issued by Newalta or any of its subsidiaries. The outstanding Senior 
Unsecured Debentures are effectively subordinated to all secured debt to the extent of collateral on such debt. 

The trust indenture and supplemental trust indentures under which the Senior Unsecured Debentures have been issued contain certain annual 
restrictions and covenants that, subject to certain exceptions, limit our ability to incur additional indebtedness, pay dividends, make certain 
loans or investments and sell or otherwise dispose of certain assets subject to certain conditions, among other limitations. As at December 31, 
2016, Newalta was in compliance with all covenants under its trust indenture and with all restrictions associated with our Consolidated Fixed 
Charge Coverage ratio, which was below the minimum threshold.  

Key covenants and restrictions under our trust indenture are as set forth below:  

($000s) December 31, 2016 December 31, 2015 Threshold 

Covenants    
Senior Secured Debt including Letters of Credit 72,632 78,079 Maximum of $25,000 + the greater of 

$220,000 and 1.75x Covenant EBITDA 

Cumulative finance lease obligations 2,113 nil $25,000 maximum 

Restrictions(1)    
Consolidated Fixed Charge Coverage(2) 0.92:1 3.52:1 2.00:1 minimum 

Period end surplus for restricted payments 28,782 72,158 Restricted payments cannot exceed 
surplus 

(1) We are restricted from declaring dividends, purchasing and redeeming shares, and making certain investments if thresholds are not met. 
(2) Restriction is calculated by dividing TTM Consolidated EBITDA by TTM Consolidated Fixed Charges, each as defined in the trust indenture governing our Senior Unsecured Debentures. Consolidated 

EBITDA is defined under the trust indenture as the sum of net income and, to the extent it has been reduced thereby; income taxes, interest expense, and non-cash charges (such as depreciation, stock-
based compensation, onerous leases and gains or losses on asset dispositions) and is normalized for any acquisitions or dispositions as if they had occurred at the beginning of the period. Consolidated 
Fixed Charge is defined as interest expense including amortization of deferred financing costs and any capitalized interest. As defined and calculated pursuant to the trust indenture governing our 
Senior Unsecured Debentures as at December 31, 2016, Consolidated EBITDA and Consolidated Fixed Charges were $21.0 million and $22.9 million, respectively.  
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Equity Issuance 
On April 20, 2016, we closed our bought deal and private placement equity financings. The public and private offerings of common shares 
raised total gross proceeds of $54.2 million (net proceeds of $51.2 million). A total of 31.9 million common shares were issued at $1.70 per 
share, with 18.0 million shares sold on a bought deal basis to the public and 13.9 million shares sold by way of private placement to certain 
institutional investors, certain officers and all directors of Newalta. The net proceeds were used to reduce the amount drawn on our Credit 
Facility. These actions were completed to support our balance sheet and better position the company upon market recovery. 

USES OF CASH 
Our primary uses of funds include maintenance and growth capital expenditures as well as acquisitions, payment of dividends, operating and 
G&A expenses and the repayment of debt. 

Capital Expenditures 
“Growth capital expenditures” or “growth and acquisition capital expenditures” are capital expenditures that are intended to improve our 
efficiency and productivity, allow us to access new markets and diversify our business. Growth capital, or growth and acquisition capital, are 
reported separately from maintenance capital because these types of expenditures are discretionary. “Maintenance capital expenditures” are 
capital expenditures to replace and maintain depreciable assets at current service levels. Maintenance capital expenditures are reported 
separately from growth activity because these types of expenditures are not discretionary and are required to maintain current operating 
levels. On an annual basis, maintenance capital, combined with repair and maintenance expense (included in operating expenses), typically is 
7% of the value of property, plant and equipment. Maintenance capital and repair and maintenance expense combined approximate 
amortization expense.  

Capital expenditures from Continuing Operations for the periods indicated are as follows:  

 
Three months ended 

December 31, 
 Year ended 

December 31, 

($000s) 2016 2015 2016 2015 

Growth capital expenditures(1) 2,969 5,277 6,683 63,047 
Maintenance capital expenditures 4,097 1,557 8,152 11,900 

Total capital expenditures from Continuing Operations 7,066 6,834 14,835 74,947 
(1) Growth capital expenditures are net of 2015 and 2016 contributions from a midstream joint venture partner for its interest in an MPF. 

 
Capital expenditures for the quarter and year ended December 31, 2016, were $7.1 million and $14.8 million, respectively. 

Management evaluates capital projects based on their internal rate of return, timing of payback, fit with our corporate strategy, and the risk 
associated with the projects, among other factors. Capital spending is prioritized towards projects that provide stable cash flows and where 
there is a high degree of certainty of completing the project on time and on budget. 

Dividends and Share Capital 
In determining the dividend to be paid to our shareholders, the Board of Directors considers a number of factors, including: the forecasts for 
operating and financial results, maintenance and growth capital requirements, as well as market activity and conditions. In light of the current 
market environment and outlook, the Board of Directors suspended the quarterly cash dividend following the dividend paid to shareholders on 
January 15, 2016. 

As at February 23, 2017, Newalta had 88,148,148 shares outstanding and outstanding options to purchase up to 5,600,533 shares.  
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Contractual Obligations  
Our contractual obligations, as at December 31, 2016 were:  

 
($000s) Total Less than one year 1-3 years 4-5 years Thereafter 

Office leases 67,803 11,674 20,737 13,162 22,230 

Operating leases(1) 6,893 2,945 3,299 649 - 

Finance leases 2,277 1,170 933 133 41 

Surface leases 3,617 656 1,222 1,164 575 

Senior long-term debt(2) 71,556 - 71,556 - - 

Senior unsecured debentures 340,238 18,500 160,753 160,985 - 

Other obligations(3) 72,633 72,426 207 - - 

Total commitments 565,017 107,371 258,707 176,093 22,846 
(1) Operating leases relate to our vehicle fleet with terms ranging between 1 and 5 years.  
(2) Senior long-term debt is gross of transaction costs. Interest payments are not included. 
(3) Other obligations is comprised primarily of accounts payable and accrued liability balances. 

 
Newalta has contributed a total of $4.0 million USD to the Enertech Partnership Agreement since the inception of the agreement in 2013. 
Newalta is contingently committed to capital contributions up to a maximum of $7.0 million USD over the ten year investment period.  

SUMMARY OF QUARTERLY RESULTS FOR COMBINED OPERATIONS 

 2016   2015    

($ millions except per share data) Q4 Q3 Q2 Q1 Q4 Q3 Q2 Q1 

Combined Operations         
Revenue  63.7 51.3 41.8 48.7 64.7  83.5  81.8  139.7  

Net loss (75.3) (20.3) (21.5) (41.3) (126.4) (15.7) (13.3) (27.7) 

Net loss per share ($) (0.85) (0.23) (0.26) (0.73) (2.25) (0.28) (0.24) (0.49) 

Diluted net loss per share ($) (0.85) (0.23) (0.26) (0.73) (2.25) (0.28) (0.24) (0.49) 

Weighted average shares outstanding – basic 88.1 88.1 81.5 56.2 56.2 56.2 56.2 56.2 

Weighted average shares outstanding – diluted 88.1 88.1 81.5 56.2 56.2 56.2 56.4 56.3 

 
Quarterly performance is affected by, among other things, weather conditions, timing of onsite projects, the value of our products, foreign 
exchange rates, market demand and the timing of our growth capital investments as well as acquisitions and the contributions from those 
investments. Revenue from certain business units is impacted by seasonality. Quarterly results over the last eight quarters were also impacted 
by fluctuations in our share price, which impacts the stock-based compensation expense and non-cash gains or losses on the embedded 
derivative. 

Q1 2015 to Q2 2015 change: 

• Revenue decreased primarily due to the sale of the Industrial Division in Q1. 

• Net loss was impacted by higher contributions from Continuing Operations as a result of lower restructuring and other related 
charges, impairment and finance charges. Q2 2015 net loss was also positively impacted by higher contributions from Discontinued 
Operations due to the timing of the sale. 

Q2 2015 to Q3 2015 change: 

• Revenue increased due to our Heavy Oil Onsite contracts. 

• Net loss was impacted primarily by lower contributions from Discontinued Operations. 

Q3 2015 to Q4 2015 change:  

• Revenue decreased due to lower crude oil prices and activity levels within Continuing Operations. 

• Net loss was impacted by impairment charges.  
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Q4 2015 to Q1 2016 change:  

• Revenue decreased in Continuing Operations due to lower crude oil prices and activity levels. 

• Net loss was impacted by lower revenue from Continuing Operations.  

Q1 2016 to Q2 2016 change:  

• Revenue decreased in Continuing Operations due to the impact of the Fort McMurray wildfires and Oilfield seasonality. 

• Net loss was impacted by reduced restructuring and other related costs incurred within Continuing Operations. 

Q2 2016 to Q3 2016 change:  

• Revenue increased in Continuing Operations primarily due to Q2 spring breakup and associated higher activity levels in WCSB. 

• Net loss was impacted by increased contributions from Continuing Operations. 

Q3 2016 to Q4 2016 change:  

• Revenue increased in Continuing Operations primarily due to increased commodity prices and higher waste volumes received. 

• Net loss was impacted by impairment charges. 

SUMMARY OF QUARTERLY RESULTS FOR CONTINUING OPERATIONS 
 2016     2015     

($ millions except per share data) Year  Q4 Q3 Q2 Q1 Year  Q4 Q3 Q2 Q1 

Revenue  205.4 63.7 51.3 41.8 48.7 327.6  64.7 83.5 81.8 97.6 
Net loss (158.5) (75.3) (20.3) (21.6) (41.2) (166.0) (116.7) (12.7) (13.4) (23.3) 

Net loss per share ($) (2.02) (0.85) (0.23) (0.26) (0.73) (2.95) (2.08) (0.23) (0.24) (0.41) 

Diluted net loss per share ($) (2.02) (0.85) (0.23) (0.26) (0.73) (2.95) (2.08) (0.23) (0.24) (0.41) 

Adjusted EBITDA 21.9 11.5 8.1 2.3 - 54.6 6.2 20.1 15.5 12.9 

Heavy Oil                
Revenue 90.0 26.5 21.1 19.5 22.9 144.7 29.3 40.3 36.7 38.4 

Divisional EBITDA 33.7 11.6 8.0 6.8 7.3 55.2 10.7 18.4 14.4 11.6 

Assets employed(1) 207 207 258 271 273 276 276 278 284 276 

Recovered crude oil (‘000 bbl) 282 87 55 70 70 198 58 56 40 44 

Oilfield            
Revenue 115.5 37.2 30.2 22.3 25.8 182.9 35.4 43.2 45.1 59.2 

Divisional EBITDA 19.2 7.6 6.8 2.6 2.2 44.9 6.1 11.6 12.0 15.2 

Assets employed(1) 435 435 446 459 457 467 467 538 528 534 

Recovered crude oil (‘000 bbl) 140 42 31 25 42 200 44 42 43 71 
(1) Assets employed is provided to assist management and investors in determining the effectiveness of the use of the assets at a divisional level. Assets employed is the sum of capital assets, intangible 

assets and goodwill allocated to each division. 

 
Historically results from our Continuing Operations are impacted by seasonality. In Heavy Oil, results in the first quarter are typically weaker as 
cold weather impacts the demand for our heavy oil onsite services. In Oilfield, results are weaker in the second quarter due to spring break-up. 

Q1 2015 to Q2 2015 change: 

• Revenue decreased in Q2 primarily due to Oilfield. 
• Net loss from Continuing Operations improved primarily due to increased revenue from Heavy Oil driven primarily by the timing of 

Onsite mining contracts, lower restructuring and other related costs and finance charges. These gains were partially offset by the 
impact of spring breakup on Oilfield contributions. 

Q2 2015 to Q3 2015 change: 

• Revenue improved in Q3 driven primarily by Heavy Oil. 

• Net loss from Continuing Operations decreased due to higher impairment, finance charges and embedded derivative losses partially 
offset by a deferred tax recovery. 
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Q3 2015 to Q4 2015 change: 

• Revenue decreased in both Heavy Oil and Oilfield due to lower crude oil prices and activity levels. 

• Net loss from Continuing Operations was impacted by impairment charges.  

Q4 2015 to Q1 2016 change: 

• Revenue decreased primarily due to lower crude prices received and lower recovered crude volumes in our Oilfield division.  

• Net loss from Continuing Operations was impacted by impairment charges.  

Q1 2016 to Q2 2016 change: 

• Revenue decreased in Heavy Oil due to the impact of the Fort McMurray wildfires and Oilfield due to spring breakup. 

• Net loss from Continuing Operations improved due to reduced restructuring and other related costs and G&A. 

Q2 2016 to Q3 2016 change: 

• Revenue increased in Oilfield due to spring breakup and Heavy Oil mining contributions. 

• Net loss from Continuing Operations improved due to increased contributions from the Heavy Oil and Oilfield divisions, and reduced 
restructuring and finance charges partially offset by increased depreciation and amortization. 

Q3 2016 to Q4 2016 change: 

• Revenue increased in both Oilfield and Heavy Oil due to increased commodity prices and waste volumes received at our Canadian 
facilities. 

• Net loss from Continuing Operations was impacted by impairment charges. 

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS 
We do not have any material off-balance sheet arrangements. 

SENSITIVITIES  
Results from Continuing Operations are sensitive to changes in commodity prices for crude oil. The direct impact of these commodity prices is 
reflected in the revenue received from the sale of products such as crude oil. Approximately 15% of our revenue is sensitive to the direct 
impact of commodity prices. Our results are also impacted by drilling activity. Drilling sensitivities are impacted by the area in which drilling 
occurs, compared to areas where we operate and the drilling techniques employed. Where possible, we actively manage these impacts by 
strategically geographically balancing mobile assets to meet demand and shifts in activity levels where necessary. 

The following table provides our estimates of fluctuations in key inputs and prices and the direct impact on revenue and Adjusted EBITDA from 
product sales:  

 
 

2016 
Change in  

benchmark 
Impact on 

Annual Revenue ($)(1) 
Impact on Annual  

Adjusted EBITDA($)(1) 

CLS ($/bbl) 53 10 1.5 to 2 million 1.5 to 2 million 
WCS ($/bbl) 39 10 3 to 3.5 million 3 to 3.5 million 
Drilling activity(2)(3)  5% change 5 to 8 million 2 to 3 million 
Metres drilled (million metres) 10 1 1.5 million 1 million 
Active rigs in WCSB 120 100 rigs 4 million 1 million 
(1) Based on 2016 actuals performance and volumes. The actual impact from crude oil prices may vary with fluctuations in recovered crude oil volumes. 
(2) Impact from changes in drilling activity assumes a change in the key drilling metrics including metres drilled and active rigs in the WCSB and in the U.S.  
(3) U.S. results are impacted by changes in drilling activity in the respective plays we serve, as indicated by active rigs and changes in our market share and operations. A sensitivity for active rigs in the U.S. 

has not been provided because of the overriding impact of shifts in market share on our results. 

 
Stock-based compensation expense is sensitive to changes in our share price. At December 31, 2016, a $0.50 change in our share price 
between $2 per share and $5 per share has approximately a $0.9 million direct impact on annual stock-based compensation reflected in G&A 
from Continuing Operations. Stock-based compensation is also impacted by dividend rate changes and the effects of vesting. 
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RISK MANAGEMENT  
To effectively manage the risks associated with our business and strategic objectives, our risk management approach continues to evolve. 
Our risk management matrix currently identifies the following risk categories: 

• Strategic – risk to earnings, capital, and strategic objectives arising due to changes in the business environment 

• Operational – risk of loss due to failed internal processes and systems, human and technical errors, or external events 

• Financial – risk associated with financial processes, obligations, and assets 

• People – risk to the business due to recruiting, training, personnel availability, and managerial structure 

• Legal/Regulatory – risk of loss due to compliance with laws, ethical standards, and contractual obligations 
• Technology and Data – risk that information technology systems are not adequate to support strategic and business objectives 

The Board of Directors is responsible for the oversight of enterprise risk in the organization, with each of the committees of the Board 
delegated specific oversight responsibility based on their particular mandate. Our Enterprise Risk Management process evaluates the most 
significant potential risks to our business and strategy identified by executive officers and senior management, together with mitigation 
strategies to manage these risks. This approach provides the framework to understand and address risks faced by our organization. 

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES 
The preparation of the Financial Statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of any contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the Financial Statements and the 
reported amounts of revenues and expenses for the period. Such estimates relate to unsettled transactions and events as of the date of the 
Financial Statements. Accordingly, actual results may differ from estimated amounts as transactions are settled in the future. Amounts 
recorded for amortization, accretion, decommissioning obligations, embedded derivatives, deferred income taxes, and impairment calculations 
are based on estimates. By their nature, these estimates are subject to measurement uncertainty, and the impact of the difference between 
the actual and the estimated costs on the Financial Statements of future periods could be material. 

Recoverability of Asset Carrying Values 
The carrying values of all assets, including property, plant and equipment, intangibles and goodwill, are reviewed for impairment whenever 
events or changes in circumstances indicate their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. Events or changes in circumstances include 
items such as significant changes in the manner in which an asset is used, including plans to restructure the operation to which an asset 
belongs, or plans to dispose of an asset before the previously expected date. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an 
individual asset, the asset is tested as part of a cash generating unit (“CGU”), which is the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates 
cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets. Judgment is applied in allocating assets 
into CGUs giving consideration to the level of integration between assets, shared infrastructure and the way in which management monitors 
operations. CGUs that have associated goodwill are tested for impairment at least annually and CGUs with or without goodwill are tested 
when there is an indication of impairment. 

We assess all assets for impairment at both the asset level and the CGU level by comparing the carrying values of the assets or CGUs being 
tested with their recoverable amounts. The recoverable amounts are the greater of the assets’ or CGUs’ values in use or their fair values less 
costs to sell. To the extent that carrying value exceeds recoverable amount, an impairment charge results. 

The determination of the recoverable amount involves estimating the assets or CGU’s fair value less costs to sell or its value-in use, which is 
based on its discounted future cash flows using an applicable discount rate. Future cash flows are calculated based on our best estimate of 
future inflation and are discounted based on our current assessment of market conditions. 

Impairment for the quarter and the year ended December 31, 2016, was $56.0 million and $60.7 million respectively, primarily due to 
impairment of certain Heavy Oil assets. In Q4 we impaired specific assets with a carrying value of $45.5 million within our Heavy Oil division, 
due to lack of certainty regarding the timing of their redeployment. We are actively pursuing opportunities to redeploy these assets to other 
projects or within our facility network. Within our Oilfield division we identified specific assets with a carrying value of $10.6 million for which we 
no longer expect to recover their value through future operations. 

For the full year, we impaired a total of $60.7 million of specific assets attributable to Heavy Oil, Oilfield and Corporate.   

For further information, see Note 6 and Note 7 to the Financial Statements. 
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Decommissioning Liability 
We recognize provisions for estimated future decommissioning costs, including future remediation and post abandonment activities, for all of 
our facilities based on the estimated time until reclamation and the long-term commitments of certain sites. The provision is initially recorded at 
the net present value of the estimated future expenditures required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date. The recorded liability 
increases over time to its future amount through accretion of the discount, with the associated expense included within finance charges. The 
measurement of the decommissioning liability involves the use of estimates and assumptions including the discount and inflation rate, the 
expected timing of future expenditures and the amount of future abandonment costs. Decommissioning estimates are reviewed annually and 
estimated by management, in consultation with our engineering and environmental, health and safety staff, on the basis of current regulations, 
costs, technology and industry standards. 

Revisions to the estimated amount or timing of the obligations are reflected prospectively as increases or decreases to the recorded liability 
and the related asset. Actual decommissioning expenditures, up to the recorded liability at the time, are drawn against the liability as the costs 
are incurred. Amounts capitalized to the related assets are amortized to income in line with the depreciation of the underlying asset. See Note 
10 to the Financial Statements for a summary of the key changes. 

Fair Value Calculation on Share-Based Payments and Share Appreciation Rights 
We have an equity incentive plan where Newalta may grant share-based long-term incentives including stock options, restricted share units, 
performance share units, deferred share units and dividend-equivalent rights to executives, employees and non-executive directors (“2014 
Equity Incentive Plan”). Under the 2014 Equity Incentive Plan, we may grant rights to acquire up to 10% of the issued and outstanding shares 
of Newalta. Currently, the only awards outstanding under the 2014 Equity Incentive Plan are options to acquire shares. The options granted 
under this plan are equity settled. The fair value of the options outstanding under 2014 Equity Incentive Plan at the grant date is calculated 
using a Black-Scholes option pricing model with the share-based compensation expense recognized over the vesting period of the options.  
There are a number of estimates used in the calculation such as the future forfeiture rate, expected dividend amount, risk free interest rates, 
expected option life and the future price volatility of the underlying security which can vary from actual future events. The factors applied in the 
calculation are management’s best estimates based on historical information and future forecasts.  

We may also grant share appreciation rights (“SARs”) to directors, officers, employees and consultants of Newalta or any of its affiliates.  
SARs entitle the holder thereof to receive cash from Newalta in an amount equal to the positive difference between the grant price and the 
trading price of our shares on the exercise date. The grant price is calculated based on the five-day volume weighted average trading price of 
our shares on the TSX. The fair value of SARs outstanding at each reporting date is calculated using the Black-Scholes option pricing model.  
There are a number of estimates used in the calculation such as the future forfeiture rate, expected dividend amount, risk free interest rates, 
expected option life and the future price volatility of the underlying security which can vary from actual future events. The factors applied in the 
calculation are management’s best estimates based on historical information and future forecasts. 

Taxation 
The calculation of deferred income taxes is based on a number of assumptions including estimating the future periods in which temporary 
differences, tax losses and other tax credits will reverse. Tax interpretations, regulations and legislation in the various jurisdictions in which we 
operate are subject to change. 

Derivative Instruments 
The estimated fair value of derivative instruments resulting in financial assets and liabilities, by their very nature, are subject to measurement 
uncertainty. 

Leases 
We make judgments in determining whether certain leases, in particular those with long contractual terms where the lessee is the sole user 
and Newalta is the lessor, are operating or finance leases.  
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Revenue 
Newalta offers individual services, products and integrated solutions to meet customer needs. Integrated solutions may involve the delivery of 
multiple services and products occurring in different reporting periods. As appropriate, these multiple element arrangements are separated into 
components and consideration is allocated based upon their relative fair values. Significant judgment is applied in identifying, calculating and 
allocating fair value consideration between the separate components of a contract. Depending upon how such judgment is exercised, the 
timing and amount of revenue recognized could differ significantly. 

FUTURE ACCOUNTING POLICY CHANGES  

Financial Instruments 
In July 2014, the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) issued IFRS 9 Financial Instruments which incorporates all three phases 
of the financial instruments projects - classification and measurement, a forward looking expected loss impairment model and a reformed 
approach to hedge accounting. The new standard is effective for periods on or after January 1, 2018, with early application permitted. We are 
assessing the impact of the standard and do not expect it to have a material impact on the annual consolidated Financial Statements. 

Revenue from Contracts with Customers 
In May 2014, the IASB issued IFRS 15 Revenues from Contracts with Customers to replace existing revenue recognition guidance. This 
standard introduces a five-step approach to the recognition of revenues from contracts with customers. The new standard is effective for 
periods on or after January 1, 2018, with early application permitted.  

We are in the process of developing an implementation plan to identify all contracts and arrangements which will fall within the scope of IFRS 
15. We believe that we have sufficient resources allocated to the project to ensure timely implementation and have commenced our 
assessment of key contracts. Once all applicable contracts and arrangements are identified and reviewed, we will assess applicable impacts. 
These include, but are not limited to, impacts to (i) recognition and measurement of revenue on our consolidated financial statements; (ii) 
company policies and business practices; (iii) information technology systems; (iv) key operating metrics; (v) internal controls; (vi) financial 
covenants; and (vii) significant judgments and estimations required. In addition, once all applicable contracts and arrangements have been 
assessed, we will make a decision regarding its adoption approach for IFRS 15. We do not expect it to have a material impact on the annual 
consolidated Financial Statements; however, we are still completing detailed assessments of this standard. 

Leasing 
In January 2016, the IASB issued IFRS 16 Leases to replace the existing guidance IAS 17 Leases. The standard establishes the principals 
and disclosure related to the amount, timing and uncertainty of cash flows arising from a lease. The new standard requires ‘lessees’ to apply a 
single model approach for all recognized leases with the option to exclude the lease of small assets and leases with a lease term of 12 months 
or less. Under the new standard, leases are recognized on the lessee’s balance sheet as a lease liability with corresponding right-of-use 
assets. ‘Lessors’ will continue to apply a dual model approach to lease accounting in their Financial Statements. For a lessor, the lease 
classification model used will determine how and when a lessor would recognize lease revenue and what assets are recorded on the lessor’s 
Financial Statements. The new standard is effective for periods on or after January 1, 2019, with early application permitted. We are assessing 
the impact of this standard. 

Amendments to IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows  
In January 2016, the IASB issued Disclosure Initiative (Amendments to IAS 7) which requires reporting issuers to provide disclosures that 
enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities. The amendment is effective for annual 
reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2017, with earlier adoption permitted. Comparative information is not required to be 
disclosed when entities first apply the amendments. We are assessing the impact of these amendments. 
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Amendments to IAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealized Losses 
This amendment sets out restrictions on how an entity assesses whether taxable profits will be available against which it can utilize deductible 
temporary differences. The latest effective date of mandatory implementation of IAS 12 is January 1, 2017. We are assessing the impact of 
these amendments. 

Amendments to IFRS 2 Share-based Payment  
In June 2016, the IASB issued amendments to IFRS 2 Share-based Payment which is to be applied to annual reporting periods beginning on 
or after January 1, 2018, with early adoption permitted. The amendments clarify how to classify and measure certain types of share-based 
payment transactions. We are assessing the impact of these amendments. 

FINANCIAL AND OTHER INSTRUMENTS 
The carrying values of accounts receivable and accounts payable approximate the fair value of these financial instruments due to their short-
term maturities. Our credit risk from our customers is mitigated by our broad customer base. Historically, on an annual basis, our top 25 
customers generate approximately 55% of our total revenue from Continuing Operations, with approximately 10% of these customers having a 
credit rating of A or higher and 45% of these customers having ratings of BBB or higher. In the normal course of operations, we are exposed 
to movements in U.S. dollar exchange rates relative to the Canadian dollar. The foreign exchange risk arises primarily from U.S. dollar 
denominated debt and working capital. We have not entered into any financial derivatives to manage the risk for the foreign currency exposure 
as at December 31, 2016. Management assesses our working capital foreign exchange exposure regularly and may draw U.S. denominated 
debt as required, which serves as a natural hedge, to mitigate our balance sheet exposure. The floating interest rate profile of our long-term 
debt exposes us to interest rate risk. We do not use hedging instruments to mitigate this risk. The carrying value of the senior secured long-
term debt approximates fair value due to its floating interest rates. For further information regarding our financial and other instruments, refer 
to Note 20 to the Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2016. 

DISCLOSURE CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES AND INTERNAL  
CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 
We have documented risks, controls, results of testing and reporting procedures based on criterion established in the Internal Control – 
Integrated Framework (2013) (“COSO 2013”) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (“COSO”). 

The Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer (collectively the “Certifying Officers”) have evaluated the design and effectiveness 
of our disclosure controls and procedures, and the operational effectiveness of our internal controls over financial reporting using COSO 2013. 
As of December 31, 2016, the Certifying Officers have concluded that such disclosure controls and procedures and internal controls over 
financial reporting were effective. There have not been any changes in the internal control over financial reporting in Q4 of 2016 that have 
materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting. 

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
Additional information relating to Newalta, including the Annual Information Form, is available through the Internet on SEDAR, which can be 
accessed at www.sedar.com. Copies of the Annual Information Form of Newalta may also be obtained from Newalta on the Internet at 
www.newalta.com, by mail at 211 – 11th Avenue SW, Calgary, Alberta T2R 0C6, or by facsimile at (403) 806-7032. 

http://www.sedar.com/
http://www.newalta.com/
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MANAGEMENT REPORT 
 

 

Management is responsible for the preparation of the accompanying consolidated financial statements in accordance with International 
Financial Reporting Standards and includes amounts based on estimates and judgments. Financial information included elsewhere in this 
report is consistent with the consolidated financial statements. 

Management maintains a system of internal controls to provide reasonable assurance that all assets are safeguarded, and to facilitate the 
preparation of relevant, reliable and timely financial and management information. As of December 31, 2016, management has reviewed the 
internal controls and has concluded that such internal controls over financial reporting were effective. 

Deloitte LLP, independent auditors appointed by the shareholders, have examined the consolidated financial statements. Their opinion 
expressed in the Independent Auditor’s Report is included in this Annual Report. The Audit Committee, consisting of three non-management 
directors, has reviewed these statements with management and the auditors and has reported to the Board of Directors. The Board has 
approved the consolidated financial statements. 

 

 
 
Linda Dietsche 
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer 
 
February 23, 2017 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 
 

To the Shareholders of Newalta Corporation 
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Newalta Corporation, which comprise the consolidated balance 
sheets as at December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015, and the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss, 
consolidated statements of changes in equity and consolidated statements of cash flows for the years then ended, a summary of significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

Management's Responsibility for the consolidated financial statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in accordance with 
International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation 
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits in 
accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan 
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material 
misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. 
The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the 
entity's preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as 
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.  

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained in our audits is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 

Opinion 
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Newalta Corporation as at 
December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with 
International Financial Reporting Standards. 

 
 
 
 
 
Chartered Professional Accountants  
 
February 23, 2017  
Calgary, Alberta 

 

  



47 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 
(Expressed in thousands of Canadian Dollars) 

 

 December 31, 2016 December 31, 2015 

Assets   

Current assets   

Cash  440 663 

Accounts and other receivables (Note 20) 40,761 49,508 

Inventories (Note 3) 3,759 4,202 

Prepaid expenses and other assets  2,907 4,009 
  47,867 58,382 
Non-current assets   

Property, plant and equipment (Note 6) 655,858 774,284 

Permits and other intangible assets (Note 7) 1,857 408 

Other long-term assets (Note 8) 4,291 4,958 

Deferred tax asset (Note 9)  - 1,557 

Goodwill (Note 7) 19,894 19,894 

TOTAL ASSETS 729,767 859,483 

Liabilities   
Current liabilities   

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (Note 14)  65,822 80,031 

Dividends payable (Note 18) - 3,515 

 65,822 83,546 
Non-current liabilities   

Senior secured debt (Note 11) 47,587 57,141 

Senior unsecured debentures (Note 12) 272,300 271,568 

Other liabilities (Note 14) 1,772 1,228 

Provisions (Note 10) 112,910 105,899 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 500,391 519,382 

Shareholders’ Equity    
Shareholders’ capital (Note 15) 478,067 426,061 

Contributed surplus  14,102 12,454 

Accumulated deficit (290,060) (131,595) 

Accumulated other comprehensive income 27,267 33,181 

TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY 229,376 340,101 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY 729,767 859,483 
The accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements are an integral component of the financial statements. 

 

Approved by the Board 

                
Gordon Pridham   Laurie Tugman 
Director    Director 

  



48 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS & COMPREHENSIVE LOSS 

(Expressed in thousands of Canadian Dollars except per share data)  
  

  For the year ended December 31, 

   2016 2015 

Revenue   205,449 327,584 

Operating expenses    152,537 227,506 

General and administrative    31,060 45,464 

Depreciation and amortization   61,360 60,866 

Stock-based compensation (Note 13)   3,849 (3,541) 

Restructuring and other related costs (Note 5)   23,939 30,316 

Impairment (Note 6, 7)    60,749 134,397 

Finance charges (Note 21)   26,594 28,844 

Embedded derivative loss (Note 20)   1,527 392 

Total expenses   361,615 524,244 

Loss before income taxes   (156,166) (196,660) 

Income tax expense (recovery) (Note 9)   2,310 (30,633) 

Net loss from continuing operations   (158,476) (166,027) 

Net earnings (loss) from discontinued operations (Note 4)   11 (17,029) 

Net loss    (158,465) (183,056) 

     

 
Other comprehensive (loss) income: 
 
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to consolidated statements of operations 

    

Exchange difference on translating foreign operations   (5,914) 20,243 

Other comprehensive (loss) income   (5,914) 20,243 

Total comprehensive loss   (164,379) (162,813) 

 
 
 

    

Loss per share:     

Basic and diluted from continuing operations (Note 17)   (2.02) (2.95) 

Basic and diluted from discontinued operations (Note 17)   - (0.30) 

Loss per share    (2.02) (3.25) 
The accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements are an integral component of the financial statement 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
(Expressed in thousands of Canadian Dollars) 
 
 

 

Shareholders’ 
capital  

(Note 15) 
Contributed 

surplus 

Retained 
earnings 

(Accumulated 
deficit) 

Accumulated 
other 

comprehensive 
income  Total 

Balance, December 31, 2014 422,991 10,916 76,061 12,938 522,906 

Changes in equity for year ended December 31, 2015      

Expense related to vesting of options  - 2,970 - - 2,970 

Exercise of options 1,791 (1,432) - - 359 

Issuance of shares  1,279 - - - 1,279 

Dividends declared - - (24,600) - (24,600) 

Other comprehensive income - - - 20,243 20,243 

Net loss  - - (183,056) - (183,056) 

Balance, December 31, 2015 426,061 12,454 (131,595) 33,181 340,101 

Changes in equity for year ended December 31, 2016      

Expense related to vesting of options  - 1,648 - - 1,648 

Issuance of shares (Note 15) 52,006 - - - 52,006 

Other comprehensive loss - - - (5,914) (5,914) 

Net loss  - - (158,465) - (158,465) 

Balance, December 31, 2016 478,067 14,102 (290,060) 27,267 229,376 

The accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements are an integral component of the financial statements. 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
(Expressed in thousands of Canadian Dollars) 
 

  For the year ended December 31, 

   2016   2015 

Cash from (used in):     

Operating Activities     

Net loss from continuing operations   (158,476) (166,027) 

Adjustments for:     

Depreciation and amortization    61,360 60,866 

Impairment (Note 6, 7)   60,749 134,397 

Onerous contracts (Note 5, 10)   14,708 9,080 

Onerous contracts paid (Note 10)   (6,566) (3,036) 

Income tax expense (recovery)  (Note 9)   2,310 (30,633) 

Income tax paid   (42) (163) 

Non-cash stock-based compensation expense (recovery) (Note 13)   3,557 (4,728) 

Finance charges   26,594 28,844 

Finance charges paid   (24,116) (20,232) 

Unrealized embedded derivative loss (Note 20)   1,527 392 

Other   457 2,920 

Funds (used in) from Operations   (17,938) 11,680 
Change in non-cash working capital (Note 24)   (3,074) 35,129 

Decommissioning costs incurred (Note 10)   (856) (1,098) 

Cash (used in) from continuing operations   (21,868) 45,711 
Cash used in discontinued operations   - (37,774) 

Cash (used in) from Operating Activities   (21,868) 7,937 

Investing Activities      
Additions to property, plant and equipment (Note 24)   (19,663) (137,449) 

Proceeds on sale of Industrial operations (Note 4)   - 278,702 

Proceeds on sale of property, plant and equipment   5,799 882 

Other   (1,328) 6,775 

Cash (used in) from continuing operations   (15,192) 148,910 
Cash used in discontinued operations   - (4,041) 

Cash (used in) from Investing Activities   (15,192) 144,869 

Financing Activities     

Issuance of shares (Note 15)   51,225 358 

Decrease in senior secured debt   (9,554) (125,963) 

Dividends paid    (3,515) (26,809) 

Other    (1,341) - 

Cash from (used in) Financing Activities   36,815 (152,414) 

Effect of foreign exchange on cash    22 (3,858) 

Change in cash    (223) (3,466) 
Cash, beginning of year   663 4,129 

Cash, end of year   440 663 
The accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements are an integral component of the financial statements. 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015. 
(All tabular data in thousands of Canadian Dollars except per share and ratio data) 
(Except where specifically noted, all amounts refer to Continuing Operations) 

NOTE 1.  CORPORATE STRUCTURE 
Newalta Corporation (“the Corporation” or “Newalta”) was incorporated on October 29, 2008, pursuant to the laws of the Province of Alberta. 
Newalta completed an internal reorganization resulting in a name change from Newalta Inc. to Newalta Corporation effective January 1, 2010. 
Newalta is a leading provider of innovative engineered environmental solutions that enable customers to reduce disposal, enhance recycling 
and recover valuable resources from oil and gas exploration and production waste streams. Newalta serves customers onsite directly at their 
operations and through a network of locations throughout North America.  

NOTE 2.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Statement of Compliance 
These Consolidated Financial Statements (“Financial Statements”) have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting 
Standards (“IFRS”) and include the accounts of Newalta and its wholly owned subsidiaries (“subsidiaries”). All significant intercompany 
balances and transactions including revenue and expenses have been eliminated.  

These Financial Statements were approved by the Board of Directors on February 23, 2017. 

Critical Judgments and Estimates in Applying Accounting Policies 
The preparation of the Financial Statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make estimates, assumptions and judgments 
that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue and expense for the period. Such estimates relate to unsettled transactions and 
events as of the date of the Financial Statements. Accordingly, actual results may differ from estimated amounts as transactions are settled in 
the future. Estimates and assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to estimates are applied prospectively. 

The following are the critical judgments that management made in applying Newalta's accounting policies and that have the most significant 
effect on amounts recognized in the Financial Statements. They are discussed further in the accounting policies that follow. 

• Determining fair value (Note 20) 

• Determining components under multiple element revenue agreements (Note 2l) 

• Determining whether agreements not in the legal form of a lease, contain a lease (Note 2l) 

• Determining the aggregation of assets into cash generating units (“CGUs”) (Note 2j and 7) 

• Determining key assumptions for impairment testing (Note 2j and 7) 

• Determining existence of provisions including onerous contracts, constructive and restructuring obligations (Note 2k and 10) 
• Determining financial instrument classification (Note 2p and 20) 

• Determining allocation of costs between continuing and discontinued operations (Note 2g) 

The following sections contain critical estimates and assumptions with the most significant effect on amounts recognized in the Financial 
Statements. They are discussed further in the accounting policies that follow. 

• Revenue (Note 2l) 
• Recoverability of asset carrying values for impairment testing purposes (Note 2j and 7) 

• Income tax (Note 2m and 9)  

• Decommissioning and other liabilities (Note 2k and 10) 

• Estimated useful lives of assets (Note 2e) 

• Derivative and embedded derivative instruments (Note 2p and 20) 

  



52 

Basis of Preparation 
The Financial Statements were prepared on a historical cost basis except for certain properties, financial instruments and stock-based 
compensation that are measured at revalued amounts or fair values at the end of each reporting period, as described in the accounting 
policies below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for assets. 

The significant accounting policies are set out below. 

 a) Consolidation 
The Corporation consolidates its interest in entities it controls. Control comprises the power to govern an entity’s financial and operating 
policies to obtain benefits from its activities and is a matter of judgment. The Financial Statements include the financial statements of Newalta 
and its wholly owned subsidiaries as at December 31, 2016 and 2015. All intercompany balances and transactions are eliminated on 
consolidation.  

The following is the major subsidiary of Newalta’s operations: 

   Ownership interest 
  Country of  

Incorporation 2016 2015 

Newalta Environmental Services Inc. Subsidiary United States 100% 100% 

 b) Cash  
Cash and cash equivalents are defined as cash and short-term deposits with maturities of three months or less, when purchased. 

 c) Offsetting financial instruments  
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported on the Consolidated Balance Sheets, when there is a legally 
enforceable right to offset recognized amounts and an intention to settle on a net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability 
simultaneously.  

 d) Inventories 
Inventories are comprised of oil and other recycled products, spare parts and supplies, and are recorded at the lower of cost and net realizable 
value. Inventories are valued using the weighted average costing method. Cost of finished goods includes the laid down cost of materials plus 
the cost of direct labour applied to the product and the applicable share of overhead expense. Cost of other items of inventories comprise the 
laid down cost. 

 e) Property, plant and equipment  
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment. Amortization rates are calculated to amortize 
the costs, net of residual value, over the assets’ estimated useful lives. Significant parts of property, plant and equipment that have different 
depreciable lives are amortized separately. Judgment is used in determining the appropriate level of componentization. 

Income and expenses incurred in bringing assets to the location and condition necessary to be capable of operating in a manner as intended 
by management are recognized as part of the cost of the asset. Determination of what costs are directly attributable and consideration of 
circumstances that an asset is operating as intended can be complex and subject to management interpretation. When significant parts of 
plant and equipment are replaced, costs are capitalized when it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to Newalta. All associated 
carrying amounts of the replaced asset are also removed from the Consolidated Balance Sheets. All other repairs and maintenance activities 
are recognized in the Consolidated Statements of Operations & Comprehensive Loss as incurred. Distinguishing major inspections and 
overhauls from repairs and maintenance in determining which costs are capitalized are also matters of management judgment. 
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Plant and equipment is depreciated at rates of 5-10% of the declining balance (buildings, site improvements, tanks and mobile equipment) or 
from 5-20 years straight-line (vehicles, equipment, computer hardware and software and leasehold improvements), depending on the 
expected life of the asset. Some equipment is depreciated based on utilization rates (onsite equipment). The utilization rate is determined by 
dividing the cost of the asset by the estimated future hours of service. Residual values, up to 20% of original cost, may be established for 
buildings, site improvements, and onsite equipment. These residual values are not depreciated. The estimated useful lives, residual values 
and amortization methods are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a 
prospective basis. 

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the 
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between net disposal proceeds 
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included as a gain or loss in net earnings (loss) in the period the item is derecognized. 

Landfill assets represent the costs of landfill available space, including original acquisition cost, incurred landfill construction and development 
costs, including leachate collection systems installed during the operating life of the site, and capitalized landfill closure and post-closure costs. 
The cost of landfill assets, together with projected landfill construction and development costs for permitted capacity plus unpermitted capacity 
that management believes is probable of ultimately being permitted, is amortized on a per-unit basis as landfill space is consumed. The impact 
on annual amortization expense of changes in estimated capacity and construction costs is accounted for prospectively. 

 f) Permits and other intangible assets 
Permits and other intangible assets are stated at cost, less accumulated amortization and impairment, and consist of certain production 
processes, trademarks, permits and agreements that are amortized over the period of the contractual benefit of 5 years on a straight-line 
basis. There are nominal fees to renew these permits, provided that Newalta remains in good standing with regulatory authorities.  

 g) Assets and liabilities held for sale and discontinued operations 
Discontinued operations are a component of an entity, comprising operations and cash flows that are clearly distinguished, operationally and 
financially. A discontinued operation is a component that either has been disposed of or is classified as held for sale, and: 

• Represents a separate major line of business or geographic area of operations 
• Is part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of business or geographic area of operations, or 

• Is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale 

In the Consolidated Statements of Operations & Comprehensive Loss, earnings (loss) from discontinued operations and any impairment loss 
on initial classification to held for sale as well as subsequent fair value gains or losses on re-measurement are combined and presented as a 
single amount separately from continuing operations. In addition when assets are sold, gains or losses on sale are also included.  

In the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows, the cash flows from discontinued operations are presented separately from cash flows from 
continuing operations. 

Assets and liabilities classified as held for sale are reported separately on the Consolidated Balance Sheets when their carrying amount will be 
recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use, and a sale is considered highly probable. Judgment is 
used in determining what events and circumstances exist to support the determination of highly probable. Immediately prior to held for sale 
classification, assets and liabilities are re-measured at lower of net book value and fair value less costs to sell. Impairment losses on initial 
classification and subsequent gains or losses on re-measurement are recognized in net earnings (loss). Once classified as held for sale, 
amortization is no longer recorded on the assets. Assets and liabilities classified as held for sale, are presented separately from Newalta’s 
other assets and liabilities.  
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 h) Leases 

Lessee 
Leases are evaluated to determine whether substantially all risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the leased item are transferred to 
Newalta, in which case the lease is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases. 

Leases classified as finance leases are recorded on the Consolidated Balance Sheets as an asset and a liability at the lower of the fair value 
of the leased assets and the present value of the minimum lease payments. Lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and 
the reduction of the outstanding liability. Leased assets are depreciated over the useful life of the asset unless there is no reasonable certainty 
that the corporation will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, in which case the asset is depreciated over the shorter of the estimated 
useful life of the asset and the lease term. 

Leases classified as operating leases are not recognized in Newalta’s Consolidated Balance Sheets. Payments made under operating leases 
are recognized in the Consolidated Statements of Operations & Comprehensive Loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease unless 
another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern of Newalta’s benefit, including any rent-free periods. Lease incentives are 
recognized as an integral part of the total lease expense, over the term of the lease. 

Leases may include additional payments for real estate taxes, maintenance and insurance. These amounts are expensed in the period to 
which they relate. 

Lessor 
Assets subject to operating leases are recognized and classified according to the nature of the leased asset. Initial direct costs incurred in 
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and expensed over the lease term on the 
same basis as the lease income. The depreciation policy for leased assets is consistent with the depreciation policy for similar owned assets. 

 i) Goodwill  
Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of the net identifiable assets of acquired businesses. 

 j) Impairment 
Impairment testing compares the carrying values of the assets or CGUs being tested with their recoverable amounts. An asset or CGUs 
recoverable amount is based on the greater of its value in use or fair value less costs to dispose. Value in use is assessed using the present 
value of the expected future cash flows of the relevant asset. The key assumptions for the value in use calculation include discount and growth 
rate estimates of the risks associated with the projected cash flows, based on the best information available as of the date of the impairment 
test.  

When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the asset is tested as part of a CGU, which is the smallest 
identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets.  
Judgment is applied in allocating assets into CGUs giving consideration to the level of integration between assets, shared infrastructure and 
the way in which management monitors operations. When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, management also 
uses judgment in allocating corporate assets to individual CGUs.  

Impairment losses are immediately recognized to the extent that the asset or CGU carrying values exceed their recoverable amounts. Should 
the recoverable amounts for previously impaired assets or CGUs subsequently increase, the impairment losses previously recognized (other 
than in respect of goodwill) may be reversed to the extent that the reversal is not a result of accretion and that the resulting carrying value 
does not exceed the carrying value that would have been the result if no impairment losses had been previously recognized.  

CGU impairment 
CGUs that have associated goodwill are tested for impairment at least annually and CGUs with or without associated goodwill are tested when 
there is an indication of impairment. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to CGUs expected to benefit from the 
business combination in which the goodwill arose. To the extent that the carrying amount of a CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the 
excess would first reduce the carrying value of goodwill and any remainder would reduce the carrying values of the non-current assets of the 
CGUs on a pro-rated basis.  
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Asset impairment 
The carrying values of all assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying 
amounts may not be recoverable. Events or changes in circumstances include items such as: significant changes in the manner in which an 
asset is used, including plans to restructure the operation to which an asset belongs, or plans to dispose of an asset before the previously 
expected date.  

 k) Provisions 
Provisions are recognized when Newalta has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that Newalta 
will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of that obligation. The determination of when to 
record provisions, including onerous contracts, restructuring related charges, and constructive obligations is a complex process that involves 
management judgment about outcomes of future events, interpretation of laws and regulations and estimates concerning the nature, extent 
and timing of expected future cash flows and discount rates. 

Decommissioning liabilities 
Newalta provides for estimated future decommissioning costs for all its facilities based on the estimated time until reclamation and the long-
term commitments of certain sites. Over this period, Newalta recognizes the liability for the future decommissioning liabilities associated with 
property, plant and equipment. These obligations are initially measured at the discounted future value of the liability. The balance of the liability 
is adjusted each period for the accretion, with the associated expense included within finance charges. Decommissioning costs and timing are 
estimated by management, in consultation with Newalta’s engineering and environmental, health and safety staff, on the basis of current 
regulations, costs, technology and industry standards. Other key estimates include discount and inflation rates. Actual decommissioning costs 
are charged against the provision as incurred. 

Onerous contracts 
Provisions are made for any contracts, including lease arrangements, which are deemed onerous. A contract is considered onerous if the 
unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be received under it. Provisions for 
onerous contracts are measured at the present value of the lower of the expected cost of terminating the contract and the expected net cost of 
continuing with the contract. The balance of the liability is adjusted each period for the accretion, with the associated expense included within 
finance charges. 

 l) Revenue recognition 
Revenue is recognized when significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods and/or delivery of services have transferred to the buyer, 
recoverability of consideration is probable, the amount of revenue can be measured reliably, Newalta retains no continuing managerial 
involvement with the goods, and the costs required to complete the contract can be estimated reliably. Revenue is measured net of returns 
and trade discounts. 

Newalta offers individual services, products and integrated solutions to meet customer needs. Integrated solutions may involve the delivery of 
multiple services and products occurring in different reporting periods. As appropriate, these multiple element arrangements are separated into 
components and consideration is allocated based upon their relative fair values. Significant judgment is applied in identifying, calculating and 
allocating fair value consideration between the separate components of a contract. 

Individual and integrated solutions may include one or more of the following:  

Sale of services 
Newalta’s waste processing services are generally sold based upon service orders or contracts with a customer that include fixed or 
determinable prices based upon hourly, daily or throughput rates. Revenue is recognized when services are rendered. 

Sale of products 
Revenue from Newalta’s sale of recycled and recovered waste products is recognized when products are delivered to customers or pipelines. 
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Construction contracts 
Construction contract revenue results from certain onsite projects. Construction revenue includes the initial amount negotiated in the contract 
plus any change in terms of scope of work performed. If costs can be measured reliably, revenue is recognized based on the stage of 
completion of the contract, determined by the physical portion of work performed. Otherwise, construction revenue will be recognized to the 
extent contract costs are likely to be recovered.  

Operating leases  
Operating lease revenue is derived from certain onsite projects. Lease accounting is applied to a component of a contract if it conveys the 
right of use of a specific asset to a customer but does not convey the risks and/or benefits of ownership. Revenue from operating leases is 
recognized over the processing period. 

 m) Income tax 
Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognized in the Consolidated Statements of Operations & Comprehensive Loss, 
except to the extent that it relates to items recognized in other comprehensive income (loss) or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also 
recognized in other comprehensive income (loss) or directly in equity, respectively. Management reviews tax positions which involve judgment 
and could be subject to differing interpretations or application of tax legislation.  

Newalta and its subsidiaries follow the liability method of accounting for income taxes. Current income tax is calculated on the basis of tax 
laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured based upon 
temporary differences between the carrying values of assets and liabilities and their tax base. Deferred income tax expense is computed 
based on the change during the year in the deferred income tax assets and liabilities. Effects of changes in tax laws and tax rates are 
recognized when substantively enacted. 

Deferred tax assets are also recognized for the benefits from tax losses and deductions with no accounting basis, provided those benefits are 
probable to be realized. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are determined based on the tax laws and rates that are anticipated to apply 
in the period of estimated realization. The amount of deferred assets and liabilities recorded is subject to judgment about likelihood of future 
cash flow and estimated settlement amounts, and timing of reversal.  

 n) Earnings per share 
Basic earnings per share is calculated using the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share 
is calculated by adding the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year to the additional shares that would have been 
outstanding if potentially dilutive shares had been issued, using the “treasury stock” method. 

 o) Incentive plans 
The Corporation’s incentive plans consist of: 

(i) an equity incentive plan pursuant to which the Corporation may grant long-term incentives including stock options, restricted share units, 
performance share units, deferred share units and dividend-equivalent rights to executives, employees and non-executive directors which 
can be settled in shares or cash (the 2014 Equity Incentive Plan); and  

(ii) stock appreciation rights, deferred share units, performance share units and restricted share units granted to eligible executives, 
employees and non-executive directors which are settled in cash.  
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2014 Equity Incentive Plan 
Under the 2014 Equity Incentive Plan, the Corporation may grant rights to acquire up to 10% of the issued and outstanding common shares of 
the Corporation (the Shares). The only share-based awards currently outstanding under the 2014 Equity Incentive Plan are options to acquire 
Shares. 

The options granted under the 2014 Equity Incentive Plan are equity settled. The fair value of options at the date of grant is calculated using 
the Black-Scholes option pricing model method with the stock-based compensation expense (“SBC”) being recognized over the vesting period 
of the options, with a corresponding increase to contributed surplus. When options are exercised, the proceeds, together with the amount 
recorded in contributed surplus, are transferred to shareholders’ capital. Forfeitures are estimated and accounted for at the grant date and 
adjusted, if necessary, in subsequent periods. 

The use of an option pricing model requires making assumptions about volatility of the company’s stock price, expected dividend amount, risk 
free interest rates, the expected life of the options and number of awards expected to be forfeited.  

Share Units 
Newalta has a cash-settled Deferred Share Unit (“DSU”) plan for non-executive directors. Under this plan, notional DSUs are granted annually 
and vest immediately. The measurement of the compensation expense and corresponding liability for these awards is based on the fair value 
of the award, and is recognized as SBC with a corresponding increase in accrued liabilities. Dividend equivalent grants, if any, are recorded as 
SBC in the period the dividend is paid. The liability is remeasured at each reporting date and at settlement date. Any changes in the fair value 
of the liability are recognized in SBC. Each DSU entitles the holder to receive a cash payment equal to the five-day volume weighted average 
trading price of the Shares preceding the date of redemption. The DSUs may only be redeemed within the period beginning on the date a 
holder ceases to be a participant under the plan and ending on December 31 of the following calendar year. 

A cash-settled Performance Share Unit (“PSU”) plan has been established for officers and other eligible employees. Under this plan, notional 
PSUs are granted based on corporate performance criterion and vest no later than December 31 of the third year after the year to which the 
relevant PSU was granted. Each vested PSU entitles the holder to receive a cash payment equal to the five-day volume weighted average 
trading price of the Shares preceding the date of redemption multiplied by a vesting factor. The vesting factor is based on performance 
conditions established by the Board of Directors prior to the date of grant of the PSU. The SBC of the PSUs is recorded on a straight-line basis 
over the vesting period with a corresponding entry to either accrued liabilities or other liabilities. This estimated value is adjusted each period 
based on the period-end trading price of the Shares and an estimated vesting factor, with any changes in the fair value of the liability being 
recognized in SBC. Dividend equivalent grants, if any, are recorded as SBC in the period the dividend is paid. 

A cash-settled Restricted Share Unit (“RSU”) plan has been established for officers and other eligible employees. Under this plan, notional 
RSUs are granted and vest over various dates with vesting no earlier than the first year anniversary date. Upon vesting, each RSU entitles the 
holder to receive a cash payment equal to the five-day volume weighted average trading price of the Shares preceding the date of redemption. 
The SBC of the RSUs is recorded on a straight-line basis over the vesting period with a corresponding entry to either accrued liabilities or 
other liabilities. This estimated value is adjusted each period based on the period-end trading price of the Shares, with any changes in the fair 
value of the liability being recognized in SBC. Dividend equivalent grants, if any, are recorded as SBC in the period the dividend is paid. 

Stock appreciation rights (SARs) 
SARs entitle the holder to receive cash from Newalta in an amount equal to the positive difference between the grant price and the trading 
price of the Shares on the exercise date. The grant price is calculated based on the five-day volume weighted average trading price of the 
Shares on the Toronto Stock Exchange. SARs generally expire five years after they are granted and the vesting period is determined by the 
Board of Directors. The fair value at the date of grant is calculated using the Black-Scholes option pricing model method with the SBC 
recognized over the vesting period of the SARs with a corresponding entry to accrued liabilities or other liabilities. The fair value is 
subsequently remeasured at the end of each reporting period. Forfeitures are estimated and accounted for at the grant date and adjusted, if 
necessary, in subsequent periods. 
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 p) Financial instruments 

Classification 
Newalta’s financial instruments are classified into one of four categories and are initially recognized at fair value and subsequently measured 
as noted in the table below. 
 

 
Cash and accounts and other receivables are classified as loans and receivables. Senior secured debt, senior unsecured debentures, 
accounts payable and accrued liabilities, dividends payable and other liabilities are classified as financial liabilities. 

Transaction costs incurred with respect to the Credit Facility are deferred and amortized using the straight-line method over the term of the 
facility. The asset is recognized in prepaid expenses and other assets on the Consolidated Balance Sheets, while the amortization is included 
in finance charges within net earnings (loss). Transaction costs associated with other financial liabilities are netted against the related liability. 

Newalta categorizes its financial instruments carried at fair value into one of three different levels, depending on the significance of inputs 
employed in their measurement. Several models exist for determining fair value and whenever possible, Newalta maximizes the use of 
observable market data. When not available, assumptions underlying the valuation models include estimated costs/prices over time, discount 
and inflation rates and other related variables which result in an estimated fair value. Estimated fair value may not be representative of 
amounts that could be realized or settled in the market. The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are as follows: 

Level 1 includes assets and liabilities measured at fair value based on quoted prices for identical assets and liabilities in active markets that 
are accessible at the measurement date. An active market for an asset or liability is considered to be a market where transactions occur with 
sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis. Newalta’s cash and senior unsecured debentures are 
classified as Level 1 financial instruments. 

Level 2 includes instruments with a fair value that is determined by quoted prices in an inactive market, prices with observable inputs, or prices 
with non-observable inputs. Financial instruments in this category are valued using models or other industry standard valuation techniques 
derived from observable market data. Such valuation techniques include inputs such as quoted forward prices, time value, volatility factors and 
broker quotes that can be observed or corroborated in the market for the entire duration of the derivative instrument. Instruments valued using 
Level 2 inputs include the embedded derivative within Series 2 of the senior unsecured debentures, HFT investments, and senior secured 
debt. 

Level 3 includes valuations based on inputs that are less observable, unavailable or where the observable data does not support a significant 
portion of the instruments’ fair value. Generally, Level 3 valuations are longer dated transactions, occur in less active markets, occur at 
locations where pricing information is not available or have no binding broker quote to support Level 2 classification. At December 31, 2016 
and 2015, Newalta did not have any Level 3 financial assets or liabilities.  

Derivative and embedded derivative instruments 
In determining whether a contract meets the definition of a derivative instrument or contains an embedded derivative, the most significant area 
where judgment is applied is determining whether an embedded derivative is closely related to the host contract; if the contract is determined 
to be closely related, bifurcation and separate accounting is not required.  

Newalta’s embedded derivative is classified as FVTPL (Level 2). It was valued using the option adjusted spread model, which requires 
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions. It is valued at fair value upon initial recognition and at the end of each reporting 
period, with gains and losses recognized through finance charges in the Consolidated Statements of Operations & Comprehensive Loss. 

  

CATEGORY SUBSEQUENT MEASUREMENT 

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss (“FVTPL”) and 
held-for-trading investments (“HFT”) 

Fair value and changes in fair value are recognized in  
net earnings (loss) 

Loans and receivables Amortized cost, using the effective interest method 

Financial liabilities  Amortized cost, using the effective interest method 
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Impairment of financial assets 
Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period. Financial assets 
are considered to be impaired when there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition 
of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the investment were affected. 

 

 q) Functional and presentation currency 
Each of the Corporation’s wholly owned subsidiaries are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity 
operates (“the functional currency”). The Financial Statements are presented in Canadian dollars, which is the Corporation’s functional 
currency.  

Upon consolidation, the Financial Statements of subsidiaries that have a functional currency different from that of the Corporation are 
translated into Canadian dollars, whereby assets and liabilities are translated at the rate of exchange at the balance sheet date, and revenues 
and expenses are translated using the exchange rate prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Gains and losses in translation are 
recognized in the shareholders’ equity section as accumulated other comprehensive income. 

If the Corporation were to dispose of its entire interest in a foreign operation, or to lose control, joint control, or significant influence over a 
foreign operation, the foreign currency gains or losses accumulated in other comprehensive income related to the foreign operation would be 
recognized in net earnings (loss). If the Corporation were to dispose of part of an interest in a foreign operation that remains a subsidiary, a 
proportionate amount of foreign currency gains or losses accumulated in other comprehensive income related to the subsidiary would be 
reallocated between controlling and non-controlling interests. 

 r) Borrowing costs 
Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset form part of the cost of that 
asset. A qualifying asset requires a period of six months or greater to be prepared for its intended use or sale. 

 s) Recent pronouncements issued 

Financial Instruments 
In July 2014, the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) issued IFRS 9 Financial Instruments which incorporates all three phases 
of the financial instruments projects - classification and measurement, a forward looking expected loss impairment model and a reformed 
approach to hedge accounting. The new standard is effective for periods on or after January 1, 2018, with early application permitted. Newalta 
is assessing the impact of the standard and does not expect it to have a material impact on the annual consolidated Financial Statements. 

  

CATEGORY IMPAIRMENT METHODOLOGY INDICATORS OF IMPAIRMENT 

Available for sale equity 
investments 

Cumulative gains or losses previously recognized in 
other comprehensive income (loss) are reclassified 
to Consolidated Statements of Operations & 
Comprehensive Loss in the period 

Significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of 
the security below its cost 

Financial assets carried at 
amortized cost 

Difference between the asset’s carrying amount 
and the present value of estimated future cash 
flows, discounted at the financial asset’s original 
effective interest rate 

The following indicators apply to the remaining two 
categories: 

• Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or 
counterparty 

• Breach of contract, such as default or 
delinquency in interest of principal payments 

• It becomes probable that the borrower will 
enter bankruptcy or financial reorganization 

• Disappearance of an active market for that 
asset because of financial difficulties 

Other financial assets Carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced 
by the impairment loss directly for all financial 
assets with the exception of trade receivables, 
where the carrying amount is reduced through the 
use of an allowance account 
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Revenue from Contracts with Customers 
In May 2014, the IASB issued IFRS 15 Revenues from Contracts with Customers to replace existing revenue recognition guidance. This 
standard introduces a five-step approach to the recognition of revenues from contracts with customers. The new standard is effective for 
periods on or after January 1, 2018, with early application permitted.  

Newalta is in the process of developing an implementation plan to identify all contracts and arrangements which will fall within the scope of 
IFRS 15. Newalta’s management believes that it has sufficient resources allocated to the project to ensure timely implementation and has 
commenced its assessment of key contracts. Once all applicable contracts and arrangements are identified and reviewed, Newalta will assess 
applicable impacts. These include, but are not limited to, impacts to (i) recognition and measurement of revenue on Newalta’s consolidated 
financial statements; (ii) company policies and business practices; (iii) information technology systems; (iv) key operating metrics; (v) internal 
controls; (vi) financial covenants; and (vii) significant judgments and estimations required. In addition, once all applicable contracts and 
arrangements have been assessed, Newalta will make a decision regarding its adoption approach for IFRS 15.  Newalta does not expect it to 
have a material impact on the annual consolidated Financial Statements; however, Newalta is still completing detailed assessments of this 
standard. 

Leasing 
In January 2016, the IASB issued IFRS 16 Leases to replace the existing guidance IAS 17 Leases. The standard establishes the principals 
and disclosure related to the amount, timing and uncertainty of cash flows arising from a lease. The new standard requires ‘lessees’ to apply a 
single model approach for all recognized leases with the option to exclude the lease of small assets and leases with a lease term of 12 months 
or less. Under the new standard, leases are recognized on the lessee’s balance sheet as a lease liability with corresponding right-of-use 
assets. ‘Lessors’ will continue to apply a dual model approach to lease accounting in their Financial Statements. For a lessor, the lease 
classification model used will determine how and when a lessor would recognize lease revenue and what assets are recorded on the lessor’s 
Financial Statements. The new standard is effective for periods on or after January 1, 2019, with early application permitted. Newalta is 
assessing the impact of this standard. 

  Amendments to IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows
In January 2016, the IASB issued Disclosure Initiative (Amendments to IAS 7) which requires reporting issuers to provide disclosures that 
enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities. The amendment is effective for annual 
reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2017, with earlier adoption permitted. Comparative information is not required to be 
disclosed when entities first apply the amendments. Newalta is assessing the impact of these amendments. 

Amendments to IAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealized Losses 
This amendment sets out restrictions on how an entity assesses whether taxable profits will be available against which it can utilize deductible 
temporary differences. The latest effective date of mandatory implementation of IAS 12 is January 1, 2017. Newalta is assessing the impact of 
these amendments. 

Amendments to IFRS 2 Share-based Payment  
In June 2016, the IASB issued amendments to IFRS 2, Share-based Payment which is to be applied to annual reporting periods beginning on 
or after January 1, 2018, with early adoption permitted. The amendments clarify how to classify and measure certain types of share-based 
payment transactions. Newalta is assessing the impact of these amendments. 
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NOTE 3.  INVENTORIES  
Inventories consist of the following: 

 
December 31, 2016  December 31, 2015 

Recycled and processed products 128 124 
Recovered crude oil 1,828 2,315 

Parts and supplies 1,803 1,763 

Total inventories 3,759 4,202 

 
The cost of inventories expensed in operating expenses for the year ended December 31, 2016 was $0.1 million (for the year ended 
December 31, 2015 – $0.3 million). 

NOTE 4.  DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS 
On February 27, 2015, Newalta completed the sale of the Industrial Division for a purchase price of $300 million, net of customary purchase 
price adjustments related to balance sheet working capital and capital expenditure targets.  
 

Purchase price 300,000 
Purchase price adjustments(1) (21,298) 

Total cash consideration 278,702 

Accounts and other receivables (50,538) 
Inventories (39,965) 

Prepaid expenses and other assets (6,245) 

Property, plant, equipment, permits and other intangible assets (261,695) 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 40,516 

Decommissioning liability 35,981 

Net assets disposed (281,946) 

Net asset shortfall (3,244) 
Costs to sell (8,069) 

Loss on sale (9,314) 

Pre-tax loss on sale of discontinued operation (20,627) 
(1) Includes adjustments for working capital deficit.  
 

The results of the Industrial Division have been presented as part of net earnings (loss) from discontinued operations as follows: 

 For the year ended December 31, 

   2016 2015  

Revenue   - 42,108 
Total expenses   - 51,589 

Loss before taxes and loss on sale   - (9,481) 
Income tax recovery   - (2,444) 

Net loss from discontinued operations before loss on sale   - (7,037) 

Pre-tax (gain) loss on sale of discontinued operations   (16) 20,627 
Income tax expense (recovery) on loss on sale(1)   5 (10,635) 

After tax (recovery) expense on sale of discontinued operations   (11) 9,992 

Net earnings (loss) from discontinued operations   11 (17,029) 
(1) The income tax recovery of $10.6 million on the loss on sale was a result of tax benefits created in respect of non-taxable proceeds of disposition on the sale of land, buildings, and certain intangibles.  
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NOTE 5.  RESTRUCTURING AND OTHER RELATED COSTS  
In 2016 and 2015, rationalization actions including headcount reductions, office space consolidation, and other general reductions were taken. 
As a result of these actions, onerous contract obligations were recognized for office space and services that no longer provide benefit to 
Newalta (Note 10).  

Restructuring and other related costs are summarized as follows: 

  For the year ended December 31, 

   2016 2015  

Onerous contracts(1) (Note 10)   14,708 9,080 
Employee termination and other costs   9,231 21,236 

Restructuring and other related costs   23,939 30,316 
 (1) Non-cash leasehold improvements impairment charges of $4.7 million related to onerous leases have been recognized on the Consolidated Statements of Operations & Comprehensive Loss for the year 

ended December 31, 2016 ($5.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2015). 

NOTE 6.  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 
Property, plant and equipment consist of the following: 

 

Land 
Plant and 

equipment Landfill Total 

Cost      
Balance, December 31, 2014 8,092 1,235,629 63,846 1,307,567 
Additions during the year - 93,512 11,487 104,999 
Disposals during the year - (7,709) - (7,709) 
Transfers to assets held for sale (95) (8,621) - (8,716) 
Effect of change in decommissioning estimate - 2,436 - 2,436 
Effect of foreign currency exchange differences - 27,429 - 27,429 
Balance, December 31, 2015 7,997 1,342,676 75,333 1,426,006 
Additions during the year - 17,782 137 17,919 
Disposals during the year (115) (27,052) (4,220) (31,387) 
Effect of change in decommissioning estimate - (2,396) - (2,396) 
Effect of foreign currency exchange differences - (5,493) - (5,493) 
Balance, December 31, 2016 7,882 1,325,517 71,250 1,404,649 
Accumulated Amortization  

    
Balance, December 31, 2014 (4,323) (469,835) (29,385) (503,543) 
Amortization for the year - (59,088) (878) (59,966) 
Disposals during the year - 5,998 - 5,998 
Transfers to assets held for sale - 4,213 - 4,213 
Impairment (1) (91,720) (674) (92,395) 
Effect of foreign currency exchange differences - (6,029) - (6,029) 
Balance, December 31, 2015 (4,324) (616,461) (30,937) (651,722) 
Amortization for the year - (58,018)(1) (1,328) (59,346) 
Disposals during the year - 19,049 4,220 23,269 
Impairment - (60,749) - (60,749) 
Effect of foreign currency exchange differences - (243) - (243) 
Balance, December 31, 2016 (4,324) (716,422) (28,045) (748,791) 
Carrying amounts     
As at December 31, 2015 3,673 726,215 44,396 774,284 
As at December 31, 2016 3,558 609,095(2) 43,205 655,858 
(1) During 2016, management reassessed and, as a result, changed the depreciation method for a certain group of assets from a utilization rate basis to straight-line basis. This change resulted in an 

incremental amortization expense of $6.3 million. 
(2) Includes equipment under finance lease arrangements with a net book value of $2.5 million at December 31, 2016 (nil at December 31, 2015). The finance lease commitments over the next five years 

are disclosed in note 19. 
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 a) Borrowing costs 
For the year ended December 31, 2016, Newalta capitalized $0.08 million, (for year ended December 31, 2015 - $2.4 million) of borrowing 
costs to qualifying assets using a capitalization rate of 6.28% (December 31, 2015 – 6.11%). 

 b) Specific asset impairment 
Newalta recognized non-cash impairment charges of $60.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2016. In the fourth quarter specific assets 
with a carrying value of $45.5 million within the Heavy Oil segment were impaired, due to lack of certainty regarding the timing of their 
redeployment. Within the Oilfield segment specific assets with a carrying value of $10.6 million were identified for which the value was 
determined to no longer be recoverable through future operations. Newalta recognized $4.7 million of impairment related to certain Corporate 
leasehold improvement assets as part of the cost rationalization initiatives. 

For the year ended December 31, 2015, Newalta recognized non-cash impairment charges of $77.3 million. The impairment charges related 
to the carrying value of certain leasehold improvement assets and plant, property and equipment determined no longer recoverable through 
future operations and which could not be repurposed or otherwise deployed. The non-cash impairment was comprised of $47.4 million in the 
Oilfield segment, $2.9 million in the Heavy Oil segment and $27.0 million in Corporate assets. See note 7 for further impairment discussion. 

NOTE 7.  PERMITS, INTANGIBLE ASSETS AND GOODWILL 
Permits, intangibles assets and goodwill consist of the following: 

 Indefinite  
permits 

Definite life 
permits/rights 

Total  
Intangibles Goodwill 

Cost      
Balance, December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2015 16,032 2,332 18,364 103,876 
Change during the year(1) 238 1,456 1,694 - 
Balance, December 31, 2016 16,270 3,788 20,058 103,876 

Accumulated Amortization     
Balance, December 31, 2014 (16,032) (1,834) (17,866) (43,433) 

Amortization for the year - (85) (85) - 

Impairment  - (5) (5) (40,549) 

Balance, December 31, 2015 (16,032) (1,924) (17,956) (83,982) 

Amortization for the year - (245) (245) - 
Balance, December 31, 2016 (16,032) (2,169) (18,201) (83,982) 

Carrying amounts     

As at December 31, 2015 - 408 408 19,894 

As at December 31, 2016 238 1,619 1,857 19,894 

(1) Changes are comprised of additions and/or disposals in the year. 

 
Goodwill has been allocated to the following CGUs: 

 December 31, 2016 December 31, 2015  

Oilfield 15,135 15,135 
Heavy Oil 4,759 4,759 

 19,894 19,894 

CGU impairment testing 
At December 31, 2016 and 2015, impairment tests were performed on all CGUs. The Heavy Oil & Oilfield CGUs have associated goodwill and 
therefore are tested annually and the U.S. CGU was tested in the fourth quarter of 2016 due to prolonged low activity levels. In assessing 
goodwill and indefinite life intangible assets for impairment at December 31, 2016 and 2015, Newalta compared the aggregate recoverable 
amount of the assets included in the CGUs to their respective carrying amounts. The recoverable amount was determined based on value-in-
use calculations using discounted cash flow projections, derived from the five year plan approved by management. Management established 
the forecast cash flows based on expected growth excluding future growth capital spending and associated revenues. There was no 
impairment at the CGU level as at December 31, 2016 however, an impairment expense of $57.1 million was recorded in the Consolidated 
Statements of Operations & Comprehensive Loss for the year ended December 31, 2015.  
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The recoverable amount and impairment by CGU is as follows: 

As at and for the year ended December 31, 2016 

 Oilfield Heavy Oil U.S. Corporate Total 

Recoverable amount 295,356 241,692 93,358 - 630,406 

CGU impairment - - - - - 

Specific asset impairment (Note 6) 9,482 45,467 1,081 4,719 60,749 

Total impairment 9,482 45,467 1,081 4,719 60,749 
 

As at and for the year ended December 31, 2015 

 Oilfield Heavy Oil U.S. Corporate Total 

Recoverable amount 320,277 354,042 105,234 - 779,553 

CGU impairment 40,549 - 16,561 - 57,110 

Specific asset impairment (Note 6) 41,973 2,915 5,384 27,015 77,287 

Total impairment 82,522 2,915 21,945 27,015 134,397 

 
The CGU impairment by major asset heading is as follows: 

 
December 31, 2016 December 31, 2015 

Property, plant and equipment - 16,556 
Permits and other intangible assets - 5 

Goodwill - 40,549 

 - 57,110 

 
The key assumptions used in determining recoverable amount included the following: 

 a) Growth rate  
Weighted average growth rates are based on internal estimates which reflect past experience and management expectation regarding activity 
and operating results, taking into consideration business strategy and economic trends in the market. The terminal growth rate beyond the five 
year period has been extrapolated using a 2% growth rate which aligns with the Bank of Canada’s inflation-control target of between 1-3%.  

Growth rate  Periods Oilfield Heavy Oil U.S. 

At December 31, 2016 2021 and beyond 2.0% 2.0% 2.0% 

At December 31, 2015 2020 and beyond 2.0% 2.0% 2.0% 

 b) Benchmark pricing 
In forecasting discounted cash flows, Newalta utilized the following benchmark pricing forecasts from independent sources at December 31, 
2016.  

 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 

West Texas Intermediate (WTI USD/bbl)(1) 50.00 57.00 64.00 70.00 77.00 
Canadian Light Sweet (CLS CAD/bbl)(1) 60.00 65.00 72.00 73.00 79.00 

Western Canadian Select (WCS CAD/bbl)(1) 40.00 43.00 47.00 48.00 52.00 
(1) The forecast benchmark commodity prices listed above are adjusted for quality differentials and other factors specific to the Corporations’ operations in performing the impairment test. 

  



65 

 c) Weighted average discount rates 
Pre-tax weighted average discount rate  Periods Oilfield Heavy Oil U.S. 

At December 31, 2016 2017 and beyond 18.7% 17.9% 15.8% 
At December 31, 2015 2016 and beyond 17.3% 17.7% 15.3% 
 
To determine discount rates, management used a pre-tax discount rate that varied by CGU based on the nature of the assets held in each 
CGU. The discount rate has been calculated using an estimated risk free rate adjusted for the Corporation’s estimated equity market risk 
premium, cost of debt and tax rate in the local jurisdiction.  

NOTE 8.  OTHER LONG-TERM ASSETS 
Other long-term assets consist of the following: 

 December 31, 2016 December 31, 2015 

Embedded derivative (Note 20) - 1,573 
Other long-term investments(1) 4,291 3,385 

 4,291 4,958 
(1) Included in other long-term investments is Newalta’s 50% interest in TerraAqua Resource Management LLC (“TARM”). Newalta’s interest in TARM is accounted for under the equity method and these 

Financial Statements include Newalta’s share of net earnings from the date that joint control commenced, based on the present 50% ownership interest in TARM. Newalta’s share of earnings, assets 
and liabilities for the year ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, were not significant. 

NOTE 9.  INCOME TAX 
Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial 
reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes. Significant components of Newalta’s deferred income tax assets and 
liabilities are as follows: 

 December 31, 2016 December 31, 2015 

Deferred income tax liabilities:   
Property, plant and equipment (85,343) (97,744) 

 (85,343) (97,744) 

Deferred income tax assets:   

Non-capital loss carry forwards and other credits(1) 122,595 90,603 

Goodwill and intangibles assets 1,206 2,117 

Decommissioning liabilities 25,397 26,080 

Deferred revenue 961 2,079 

Deferred expenses 7,826 5,927 

Other(1)  6,195 3,423 

 164,180 130,229 

Unrecognized deferred tax benefit(1)  (78,837) (30,928) 

Net deferred income tax asset  - 1,557 
(1) Prior year information has been recast to conform to current year presentation. 
 

In light of uncertainty regarding the timing and extent of recovery and, by extension, uncertainty of timing and utilization of its tax pools, 
Newalta reversed its existing deferred tax asset. At December 31, 2016 there are unrecognized deferred tax assets of $78.8 million 
(December 31, 2015 - $30.9 million). 

Loss carry forwards at December 31, 2016 of $216 million in respect of Canadian operations will begin expiring in 2027, and $164 million in 
respect of our U.S. operations will begin expiring in 2029.  
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The income tax expense differs from the amount computed by applying Canadian statutory rates to operating income for the following 
reasons: 

 For the year ended December 31, 

 2016 2015 

Consolidated loss of Newalta Corporation before taxes and distributions to shareholders (156,166) (196,660) 

Current statutory income tax rate 26.96% 26.14% 

Computed tax recovery at statutory rate (42,102) (51,407) 

Increase (decrease) in taxes resulting from:   

Changes in tax rates, income taxed at different rates, and unrecognized deferred tax assets 41,469 20,137 

Loss on embedded derivatives 412 103 

Stock-based compensation expense and non-deductible costs 601 999 

Tax impact of changes in estimate for prior year tax pools 1,431 (499) 

Share issue costs booked to equity 781 - 

 Other (282) 34 

Reported income tax expense (recovery)  2,310 (30,633) 

NOTE 10. PROVISIONS 

 Decommissioning 
liability (1) 

Onerous  
contracts(2) 

Total  
provisions 

Balance, December 31, 2014 63,454 5,864 69,318 
Additions(6) 26,452(3) 10,849(4) 37,301 

Actual expenditures incurred to fulfill obligations (1,099) (3,036) (4,135) 

Accretion 1,935 443 2,378 

Change in discount rate(6) 3,950 - 3,950 

Effect of foreign currency exchange differences(6) 365 - 365 

Balance, December 31, 2015 95,057 14,120  109,177(5) 
Additions 613(3) 17,892(4) 18,505 

Actual expenditures incurred to fulfill obligations (856) (6,566) (7,422) 

Accretion 2,500 257 2,757 

Change in discount rate (4,648) - (4,648) 

Effect of foreign currency exchange differences (108) 591 483 

Balance, December 31, 2016 92,558 26,294 118,852(5) 
(1) The future decommissioning liability was estimated by management based on anticipated costs to abandon and reclaim facilities and wells, and the projected timing of these expenditures. The net 

present value of this amount, $92.6 million (December 31, 2015 - $95.1 million) was accrued and recorded in provisions within the Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31, 2016. The estimated 
future cost for the decommissioning liability at December 31, 2016 was $438 million over an expected range up to 73 years. Newalta used risk-free discount rates between 2.34% to 4.02% as at 
December 31, 2016 (December 31, 2015 – 2.16% to 4.02%) and an inflation rate of 2% (December 31, 2015 - 2%) to calculate the present value of the decommissioning liability. 

(2) The onerous contracts liability was measured at the present value of the lower of the expected cost of terminating the contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the contract. The net 
present value of this amount is $26.3 million (December 31, 2015 - $14.1 million) was accrued and recorded in the provisions within the Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31, 2016. Newalta 
used risk-adjusted rates between 1.02% and 2.45% (December 31, 2015 – between 0.62% and 1.13%) to calculate the present value of the onerous contracts. 

(3) Additions are comprised of new decommissioning liabilities (2016 - $0.1 million, 2015 - $10.4 million) in the year as well as changes in cost estimates (2016 - $0.5 million, 2015 - $16.1 million).  
(4) Additions are primarily comprised of onerous leases and include $3.3 million (2015 - $1.9 million) in liabilities previously recorded as deferred rent. 
(5) As at December 31, 2016, the current portion of the onerous lease provision is $5.9 million (December 31, 2015 - $3.3 million) and recorded in Accounts payable and accrued liabilities within the 

Consolidated Balance Sheets. 
(6) Prior year information has been recast to conform to current year presentation. 
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NOTE 11.  SENIOR SECURED DEBT 
 December 31, 2016  December 31, 2015 

Senior secured debt 47,587 57,141 
 

Effective March 1, 2016, Newalta amended the terms of its Credit Facility to extend the waiver of Total Debt to Covenant EBITDA to Q1 2018 
and to revise the Senior Debt to Covenant EBITDA and Interest Coverage thresholds as outlined below: 

(1) Per the October 31, 2016 amendment, Newalta’s Interest Coverage ratio for Q4 2016 was waived. Newalta did not require this waiver. 

 

At the election of management, the principal borrowing amount was reduced from $175 million to $160 million and the maximum value of 
surety bonds (including performance bonds) excluded from the definition of Total Debt was reduced from $85 million to $31 million. Newalta 
has also made additional adjustments to its covenant package to take into consideration the current economic environment in the industry, 
including a restriction on declaring dividends through the period ending March 31, 2018.  

Effective October 31, 2016 Newalta amended its Credit Facility to include a waiver on its Interest Coverage covenant for the fourth quarter of 
2016 and reduce the principal borrowing amount by $10 million to $150 million. Newalta sought the one-time waiver as a precautionary 
measure given the lack of visibility to oil prices and activity levels in the near term. Newalta was in compliance with the threshold established in 
the March 1, 2016 amendment and did not require the waiver in the fourth quarter. 

The maturity of the Credit Facility is July 12, 2018. Management may, at its option, request an extension of the Credit Facility on an annual 
basis. If no request to extend the Credit Facility is made by Newalta, the entire amount of outstanding indebtedness would be due in full on 
July 12, 2018. 

Newalta is required to be in compliance with certain financial covenants as defined and calculated in its Credit Facility and as set forth below. 
At December 31, 2016, Newalta was in compliance with all covenants under its Credit Facility. Newalta exercised an option pursuant to its 
Credit Facility to waive the minimum Interest Coverage threshold for the third quarter of 2016. 

For the year ended December 31, 2016, the weighted average interest rate on senior secured debt was 5.68% (for year ended December 31, 
2015 – 2.59%).  

Financial covenants under the Credit Facility include: 

 
December 31, 2016 December 31, 2015(1) 

Threshold  
December 31, 2016  

Senior Debt(2) to Covenant EBITDA(3)  2.75:1 1.44:1 5.25:1 maximum 
Total Debt(4) to Covenant EBITDA(3) 13.10:1 6.55:1 Waived 

Interest Coverage(5) 1.11:1                   2.17:1    Waived 
(1) As defined in the credit agreement governing Newalta’s Credit Facility in effect on December 31, 2015. 
(2) Senior Debt means the Total Debt less the Senior Unsecured Debentures. Senior Debt as at December 31, 2016 was $72.9 million (December 31, 2015 - $77.9 million). 
(3) Covenant EBITDA is a term used to describe EBITDA as defined in the credit agreement governing Newalta’s Credit Facility and is a non-GAAP measure, the closest measure of which is net earnings. For 

the purpose of calculating the covenant, Covenant EBITDA is defined as the trailing-twelve months (“TTM”) consolidated net income for Newalta before the deduction of interest, taxes, depreciation 
and amortization, and non-cash items (such as stock-based compensation, onerous leases and gains or losses on asset dispositions) and non-recurring items (such as cash-based restructuring costs and 
the cash portion of onerous lease costs) up to $15 million from Q2 2015 – Q1 2016; $12 million from Q1 2016 – Q4 2016; thereafter reverts to $5 million. Additionally, Covenant EBITDA is normalized 
for any acquisitions or dispositions as if they had occurred at the beginning of the period. As defined and calculated pursuant to the credit agreement governing Newalta’s Credit Facility, Covenant 
EBITDA as at December 31, 2016 was $26.6 million (December 31, 2015 - $53.8 million).  

(4) Total Debt comprises outstanding indebtedness under the Credit Facility, including a bank surplus, or overdraft balance; finance lease obligations and the Senior Unsecured Debentures. Total Debt as at 
December 31, 2016 was $347.9 million (December 31, 2015 – 352.3 million). 

(5) Covenant is calculated based on Combined Operations. Interest Coverage is calculated by dividing Covenant EBITDA (as defined in footnote 3 prior to normalization for acquisitions and dispositions) by 
the TTM Interest Expense. For the trailing-twelve months ended December 31, 2016, Covenant EBITDA prior to normalizing adjustments of nil was $26.6 million and Interest Expense was $24.0 million 
(December 31, 2015 - Covenant EBITDA prior to normalizing adjustments of nil was $53.8 million and Interest Expense was $21.9 million). 

  

 2016 2017 2018  

 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Thereafter 

Senior Debt (maximum) 5.25:1 4.50:1 4.50:1 3.00:1 3.00:1 3.00:1 3.00:1 

Interest Coverage (minimum)(1) 1.00:1 1.00:1 1.00:1 1.50:1 1.50:1 1.50:1 2.25:1 
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NOTE 12.  SENIOR UNSECURED DEBENTURES 

 December 31, 2016  December 31, 2015 

Senior unsecured debentures series 2 (Note 20) 125,135 125,181 
Net series 2 unamortized issue costs (939) (1,266) 
Senior unsecured debentures series 3 (Note 20) 150,000 150,000 
Net series 3 unamortized issue costs (1,896) (2,347) 
Senior unsecured debentures 272,300 271,568 

 
Series 2 
On November 14, 2011, Newalta issued $125.0 million of 7.75% series 2 senior unsecured debentures (“series 2”) which mature on 
November 14, 2019. Interest is payable semi-annually in arrears on May 14 and November 14 in each year, commencing on May 14, 2012. 
The series 2 debentures rank equally with all other existing and future unsecured senior debt and is senior to any subordinated debt that may 
be issued by Newalta or any of its subsidiaries. The series 2 debentures are effectively subordinated to all secured debt to the extent of 
collateral on such debt.  

As of November 14, 2015, the series 2 debentures are redeemable at the option of Newalta, in whole or in part, at redemption prices 
expressed as percentages of the principal amount, plus in each case accrued interest to the redemption date, if redeemed during the twelve 
month period beginning on November 14, 2016 – 101.938% and November 14, 2017 and thereafter – 100%.  

If a change of control occurs, Newalta will be required to offer to purchase all or a portion of each debenture holder’s series 2 debentures, at a 
purchase price in cash equal to 101% of the principal amount of the series 2 debentures offered for repurchase plus accrued interest to the 
date of purchase. 

Series 3 
On April 1, 2014, Newalta issued $150 million of 5.875% series 3 unsecured debentures (“series 3”) which mature on April 1, 2021. Interest is 
payable semi-annually in arrears on April 1 and October 1 in each year, commencing on October 2014. The series 3 rank equally with all other 
existing and future unsecured senior debt and is senior to any subordinated debt that may be issued by Newalta or any of its subsidiaries. The 
series 3 debentures are effectively subordinate to all secured debt to the extent of collateral on such debt.  

After April 1, 2017, the series 3 debentures are redeemable at the option of Newalta, in whole or in part, at redemption prices expressed as 
percentages of the principal amount, plus in each case accrued interest to the redemption date, if redeemed during the twelve month period 
beginning on April 1, 2017 of the years as follows: Year 2017 – 102.938%, Year 2018 – 101.958%, Year 2019 – 100.979%, Year 2020 and 
thereafter – 100%.  

If a change of control occurs, Newalta will be required to offer to purchase all or a portion of each debenture holder’s series 3 debentures, at a 
purchase price of 101% of the principal amount offered for repurchase plus accrued interest to the date of purchase. 

The trust indenture and supplemental trust indentures under which the Senior Unsecured Debentures have been issued contain certain 
restrictions and covenants that, subject to certain exceptions, limit Newalta’s ability to incur additional indebtedness, pay dividends, make 
certain loans or investments and sell or otherwise dispose of certain assets subject to certain conditions, among other limitations. As at 
December 31, 2016, Newalta was in compliance with all covenants under its trust indenture and with all restrictions associated with its 
Consolidated Fixed Charge Coverage ratio, which was below the minimum threshold. 
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Key covenants and restrictions under the trust indenture include:  

 
($000s) 

 
December 31, 2016 

 
December 31,2015 

 
Threshold 

Covenants    
Senior Secured Debt including Letters of Credit 72,632 78,079 Maximum of $25,000 + the greater of 

$220,000 and 1.75x Covenant EBITDA 
Cumulative finance lease obligations 2,113 Nil $25,000 maximum 
Restrictions(1)    
Consolidated Fixed Charge Coverage(2) 0.92:1 3.52:1 2.00:1 minimum 

Period end surplus for restricted payments 28,782 72,158 Restricted payments cannot         
exceed surplus 

(1) Newalta is restricted from declaring dividends, purchasing and redeeming shares, and making certain investments if thresholds are not met. 
(2) Restriction is calculated by dividing TTM Consolidated EBITDA by TTM Consolidated Fixed Charges, each as defined in the trust indenture governing Newalta’s Senior Unsecured 

Debentures.  Consolidated EBITDA is defined under the trust indenture as the sum of net income and, to the extent it has been reduced thereby; income taxes, interest expense, and non-cash charges 
(such as depreciation, stock based compensation, onerous leases and gains or losses on asset dispositions), and is normalized for any acquisitions or dispositions as if they had occurred at the beginning 
of the period.  Consolidated Fixed Charge is defined as interest expense including amortization of deferred financing costs and any capitalized interest. As defined and calculated pursuant to the trust 
indenture governing Newalta’s Senior Unsecured Debentures as at December 31, 2016, Consolidated EBITDA and Consolidated Fixed Charges were $21.0 million and $22.9 million respectively.  

NOTE 13.  INCENTIVE PLANS 

 a) Option Plan 
For the year ended December 31, 2016 there were no options exercised, for the year ended December 31, 2015 the weighted average price 
of Newalta’s Shares at the date of exercise of the options was $15.86. 

A summary of the status of Newalta’s option plan as of December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015 and changes during the period are 
presented as follows: 

 Option plan  
(000s) 

Weighted average exercise price 
($/share) 

At December 31, 2014 3,392 14.69 

Granted(1) 1,569 16.12 
Exercised (398) 12.26 

Forfeited (231) 17.15 

At December 31, 2015(2) 4,332 15.30 

Granted(1) 990 3.50 
Forfeited (2,154) 13.93 

At December 31, 2016(2) 3,168 12.54 

Exercisable    

At December 31, 2015 1,974 13.96 

At December 31, 2016 1,407 15.51 
(1) Each tranche of the options vest over a three year period (with a five year life).  
(2) The fair value was calculated using the Black-Scholes method of valuation, using inputs applicable at the option’s grant date. 

 
 

Range of exercise prices ($/share) 

Options 
outstanding 

December 31, 2016 
Weighted average 

remaining life 
Weighted average 

exercise price 

Options 
exercisable 

December 31, 2016 
Weighted average 

exercise price 

3.50 850 4.0 3.50 - - 
11.93 – 15.61 737 0.6 14.30 737 14.30 

15.62 – 20.42 1,581 2.8 16.58 670 16.85 

 3,168 2.6 12.54 1,407 15.51 
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 b) Share Appreciation Rights (SARs) 
For the year ended December 31, 2016 there were no SARs exercised. The weighted average price of Newalta’s Shares at the date of 
exercise of the SARs was $16.03 for the year ended December 31, 2015. 

Changes in the number of outstanding SARs were as follows:  

 SARs  
(000s) 

Weighted average exercise 
price ($/right) 

At December 31, 2014 2,253 15.19 

Granted(1) 620 16.12 
Exercised (398) 12.77 

Forfeited (536) 16.62 

At December 31, 2015(2) 1,939 15.59 

Granted(1) 597 3.50 
Forfeited (840) 12.36 

At December 31, 2016(2) 1,696 12.95 

Exercisable    

At December 31, 2015 1,003 14.84 

At December 31, 2016 988 15.45 
(1) Each tranche of the SARs vest over a three year period (with a five year life). 
(2) The fair value was calculated using the Black-Scholes method of valuation, assuming 61.93% volatility (December 31, 2015 – 44.48%), a weighted average expected annual dividend yield of 0% 

(December 31, 2015 – 4.29%), a risk free rate of 0.73% (December 31, 2015 – 0.48%) and a 20% forfeiture rate (December 31, 2015 – 15%). 

 

Range of exercise prices ($/share) 
SARs outstanding 

December 31, 2016 
Weighted average 

remaining life 
Weighted average 

exercise price 
SARs exercisable 

December 31, 2016 
Weighted average 

exercise price 

3.50 373 4.0 3.50 - - 
11.93 – 15.61 562 0.6 14.32 562 14.32 

15.62 – 19.56 761 2.5 16.72 426 16.94 

 1,696 2.2 12.95 988 15.45 

 c) Share Unit Plans 
Changes in the number of outstanding share units under Newalta’s Deferred Share Unit, Performance Share Unit and Restricted Share Unit 
plans were as follows: 

 Units 
(000s) 

At December 31, 2014 181 
Granted 131 

Exercised - 

At December 31, 2015 312 
Granted 1,803 

Exercised (167) 

Forfeited (75) 

At December 31, 2016 1,873 

Exercisable   

At December 31, 2015 - 

At December 31, 2016 - 
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 d) Stock-based Compensation Expense (Recovery) 
The following table summarizes the SBC recorded for all plans on the Consolidated Statements of Operations & Comprehensive Loss:  

  For the year ended December 31, 
   2016 2015 

Stock option plans – non-cash expense   1,676 2,653 

SARs and share unit plans – cash expense   292 1,187 
SARs and share unit plans non-cash expense (recovery)   1,881 (7,381) 

Total SARs and share unit plans expense (recovery)    2,173 (6,194) 

Total stock-based compensation expense (recovery)   3,849 (3,541) 

 e) Incentive Plan Liabilities 
As at December 31, 2016, the total liability related to the Corporation’s incentive plans was $3.5 million, with $2.8 million classified as current 
and $0.7 million classified as non-current (December 31, 2015 total incentive plan liabilities of $1.7 million, with $0.5 million classified as 
current and $1.2 million classified as non-current). The current liability associated with the Corporation’s incentive plans is included in 
accounts payable and accrued liabilities on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. The non-current liability is recorded in other liabilities on the 
Consolidated Balance Sheets.  

NOTE 14.  SUPPLEMENTAL BALANCE SHEET INFORMATION 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities consist of the following: 

 
December 31, 2016 December 31, 2015 

Accounts payable 18,970 23,048 
Accrued liabilities(1) 33,879 45,962 

Deferred revenue 3,128 7,288 

Short-term stock-based compensation 2,846 454 

Short-term finance lease obligations 1,058 - 

Short-term onerous leases (Note 10) 5,941 3,279 

 65,822 80,031 
 
Other liabilities consist of the following: 

 
December 31, 2016 December 31, 2015 

Long-term stock-based compensation 717 1,228 
Long-term finance lease obligations 1,055 - 

 1,772 1,228 
(1) Included in the Accrued liabilities at December 31, 2016 are $25.7 million in operating accrual (December 31, 2015 - $28.6 million), $2.0 million in capital accrual (December 31, 2015 - $5.9 million) and 

$6.2 million accrual related to Industrial disposition (December 31, 2015 - $11.4 million). 
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NOTE 15.  SHAREHOLDERS’ CAPITAL 
Authorized capital of the Corporation consists of an unlimited number of common shares and an unlimited number of preferred shares 
issuable in series.  

On April 20, 2016, Newalta closed bought deal and private placement equity financings. The public and private offerings of common shares 
raised total gross proceeds of $54.2 million (net proceeds of $51.2 million). A total of 31.9 million common shares were issued at $1.70 per 
share, with 18.0 million sold on a bought deal basis to the public and 13.9 million sold by way of private placement to certain institutional 
investors and certain officers and directors of Newalta. The following table is a summary of the changes in shareholders’ capital during the 
periods: 

Common Shares Shares (#) Amount ($) 

Shares outstanding as at December 31, 2014 56,026 422,991 

Shares issued on exercise of options 113 1,791 

Shares issued under dividend reinvestment plan(1) 98 1,279 

Shares outstanding as at December 31, 2015 56,237 426,061 

Shares issued under bought deal and private placement(2) 31,911 52,006 

Shares outstanding as at December 31, 2016 88,148 478,067 
(1) Newalta’s dividend reinvestment plan (“DRIP”) allows eligible shareholders to elect to reinvest their cash dividends in additional common shares at a 5% discount to average market price. In Q1 2015 

Newalta suspended the DRIP program. 
(2) Net of share issue costs and tax effect of $0.8 million. 

NOTE 16.  CAPITAL DISCLOSURES 
Newalta’s capital structure consists of: 

 December 31, 2016 December 31, 2015 

Senior secured debt 47,587 57,141 

Letters of credit issued as financial security to third parties (Note 20) 23,234 20,239 

Senior unsecured debentures(1) 275,135 275,181 

Shareholders’ equity 229,376 340,101 

 575,332 692,662 
(1) Excludes issue costs. 

 
The objectives in managing the capital structure are to: 

• Align the debt structure with the asset structure 
• Utilize an appropriate amount of leverage to maximize return on shareholders’ equity 

• Provide for borrowing capacity and financial flexibility to support Newalta’s operations 

Management and the Board of Directors review and assess Newalta’s capital structure and dividend policy at least at each regularly 
scheduled board meeting which are held at a minimum four times annually. The financial strategy may be adjusted based on the current 
outlook of the underlying business, the capital requirements to fund growth initiatives and the state of the debt and equity capital markets. In 
order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, Newalta may: 

• Issue shares from treasury 
• Issue new debt securities 
• Cause the return of letters of credit with no additional financial security requirements 
• Replace outstanding letters of credit with bonds or other types of financial security 
• Amend, revise, renew or extend the terms of its then existing long-term debt facilities 
• Draw on existing credit facility and/or enter into new agreements establishing new credit facilities 
• Adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders 
• Sell idle, redundant or non-core assets 

Management monitors the capital structure based on covenants required pursuant to the Credit Facility. See notes 11 and 12 for covenants. 
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NOTE 17.  LOSS PER SHARE 
Basic loss per share calculations for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 were based on the weighted average number of shares 
outstanding for the respective years. Diluted loss per share calculations include the potential dilution of outstanding options under incentive 
plans to acquire shares. 

The calculation of diluted loss per share does not include anti-dilutive options. These options would not be exercised during the period 
because their exercise price is higher than the average market price for the period and therefore anti-dilutive. The number of excluded options 
for the year ended December 31, 2016 was 3,168,250 (4,331,750 for the year ended December 31, 2015). 

                        For the year ended December 31, 

   2016 2015 

Net loss from continuing operations   (158,476) (166,027) 
Net earnings (loss) from discontinued operations   11 (17,029) 

Net loss    (158,465) (183,056) 

Weighted average number of shares   78,557 56,221 
Net additional shares if options exercised   - - 

Diluted weighted average number of shares   78,557 56,221 
Loss per share:     
Basic and diluted from continuing operations   (2.02) (2.95) 

Basic and diluted from discontinued operations   - (0.30) 

Loss per share    (2.02) (3.25) 

NOTE 18.  DIVIDENDS DECLARED 

  For the year ended December 31, 

   2016 2015 

Total dividends declared per share   - 0.4375 
 

Newalta suspended the quarterly cash dividend following the dividend paid to shareholders on January 15, 2016. 

NOTE 19.  COMMITMENTS 

 a) Debt and Other Commitments 
Newalta has annual commitments for senior long-term debt, senior unsecured debentures, and leased property and equipment as follows: 

 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 Thereafter Total 

Amount drawn on credit        
facility(1)  (Note 11) 

- 71,556 - - - - 71,556 

Senior unsecured debentures  18,500 18,500 142,253 8,813 152,172 - 340,238 

Total debt commitments 18,500 90,056 142,253 8,813 152,172 - 411,794 

Office leases 13,307 12,952 11,048 6,767 6,790 22,230 73,094 
Office subleases (1,633) (1,671) (1,592) (395) - - (5,291) 

Operating leases 2,945 1,908 1,391 592 57 - 6,893 

Finance leases 1,170 645 288 84 49 41 2,277 

Surface & property leases 656 626 596 584 580 575 3,617 

Purchase commitments 207 207 - - - - 414 

Total debt and other commitments 35,152 104,723 153,984 16,445 159,648 22,846 492,798 
(1) Gross of transaction costs. Interest payments are not included. 
  



74 

 b) Enertech Partnership Agreement 
Newalta has contributed a total of $4.0 million USD to the Enertech Partnership Agreement since the inception of the agreement in 2013. 
Newalta is contingently committed to capital contributions up to a maximum of $7.0 million USD over the 10 year investment period. The 
investment is classified as held-for-trading and is recorded in other long-term assets. 

 c) Letters of Credit and Surety Bonds 
As at December 31, 2016, Newalta had issued letters of credit and surety bonds in the amount of $23.2 million and $21.0 million, respectively 
($20.2 million and $15.9 million as at December 31, 2015). 

NOTE 20.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

Fair Value of Financial Assets and Liabilities 
Newalta’s financial instruments include cash, accounts and other receivables, other long-term assets, accounts payable and accrued liabilities, 
dividends payable, finance lease obligations, senior secured debt and senior unsecured debentures. With the exception of the senior 
unsecured debentures, the fair values of Newalta’s financial instruments that are included within the Consolidated Balance Sheets 
approximate their recorded amount due to the short-term nature of those instruments and the floating nature of the interest rate applicable to 
these instruments. The fair values incorporate an assessment of credit risk. The carrying values of Newalta’s financial instruments at 
December 31, 2016 are as follows: 

 
 FVTPL and  

HFT 
Loans and 

receivables 
Financial  
liabilities 

Total carrying  
value(1) 

Accounts and other receivables - 40,761 - 40,761 
Held-for-trading investment(2) 3,984 - - 3,984 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities - - 65,822 65,822 

Senior secured debt - - 47,587 47,587 

Long-term finance lease obligations(3) - - 1,055 1,055 
(1) All carrying values are equal to fair value. 
(2) Recorded in the Other long-term assets within the Consolidated Balance Sheets. Assessed as Level 2.  
(3) Recorded in Other liabilities within the Consolidated Balance Sheets. 
 

The fair value of the unsecured senior debentures is based on open market quotation as follows: 

As at December 31, 2016 
Carrying value 

Quoted fair  
value 

7.75% series 2 senior unsecured debentures due November 14, 2019 125,135 116,250 

5.875% series 3 senior unsecured debentures due April 1, 2021 150,000 124,500 
 

Embedded derivatives 
The senior unsecured debentures have early redemption features at values based on percentages of the principal amount plus accrued and 
unpaid interest. Due to the redemption rates being fixed, an embedded derivative exists when compared to current market rates. Newalta 
estimates the fair value of the embedded derivatives using a valuation model that considers the current bond prices and spreads associated 
with the senior unsecured debentures.  

Series 2 
Newalta recognized a loss of $1.5 million on the series 2 debentures for the year ended December 31, 2016 (loss of $0.4 million for the year 
ended December 31, 2015) and determined the fair value of the embedded derivative for the series 2 debentures to be nil as at December 31, 
2016.  
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Offsetting financial instruments 
Certain waste processing revenue sources entitle customers to credits on the sale of recovered products. The following table presents the 
recognized financial instruments that are offset as at December 31, 2016 and 2015: 

 December 31, 2016 December 31, 2015 

Gross trade receivables 39,126 43,635 
Gross liabilities offset (3,272) (3,325) 

Net trade receivables 35,854 40,310 
 

Credit risk and economic dependence 
Newalta is subject to credit risk on its trade accounts receivable balances. One customer represented 15% of total trade accounts receivable 
at December 31, 2016 (no customer balance exceeded 10% as at December 31, 2015). Newalta views the credit risks on this account as low. 
Credit risk is minimized by Newalta’s broad customer base and diverse product lines and is mitigated by the ongoing assessment of the credit 
worthiness of its customers as well as monitoring the amount and age of balances outstanding.  Newalta’s assessment of credit risk has 
remained unchanged from the prior year. 

No customer’s revenue exceeded 10% of revenue for the year ended December 31, 2016 (13% for the year ended December 31, 2015 
recognized within the Heavy Oil Division).  

Based on the nature of operations, established collection history and industry norms, receivables are not considered past due until 90 days 
after invoice date, although standard payment terms require payment within 30 to 90 days. Depending on the nature of the service and/or 
product, customers may be provided with extended payment terms while Newalta gathers certain processing or disposal data. Included in the 
Corporation’s trade receivable balance are receivables totalling $0.7 million (December 31, 2015 – $2.5 million), which are considered to be 
outstanding beyond normal repayment terms at December 31, 2016. A provision of $0.6 million (December 31, 2015 – $0.7 million) has been 
established as an allowance for doubtful accounts. No additional provision has been made as there has not been a significant change in credit 
quality and the amounts are still considered collectible. Newalta does not hold any collateral over these balances. Total accounts and other 
receivables of $40.8 million is comprised of $35.3 million of trade receivables and accrued receivables of $5.5 million.  

 

To determine the recoverability of a trade receivable, management analyzes accounts receivable, first identifying customer groups that 
represent minimal risk (large oil and gas and other low risk large companies, governments and municipalities). Impairment of the remaining 
accounts is determined by identifying specific accounts that are at risk, and then by applying a formula based on aging to the remaining 
amounts receivable. All amounts identified as at risk are provided for in an allowance for doubtful accounts. The changes in this account for 
the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 are as follows: 

Allowance for doubtful accounts December 31, 2016 December 31, 2015 

Balance, beginning of year  
706 285 

Net increase in provision 763 891 
Net amounts recovered (written off as uncollectible) (882) (470) 
Balance, end of year 587 706 

 

  

Aging 
Trade receivables aged 

 by invoice date 
Allowance for  

doubtful accounts Net receivables 
 Dec 31, 2016 Dec 31, 2015 Dec 31, 2016 Dec 31, 2015 Dec 31, 2016 Dec 31, 2015 
Current 30,001 30,710 88 1 29,913 30,709 
31-60 days 4,330 5,290 20 4 4,310 5,286 
61-90 days 793 1,771 21 50 772 1,721 
91 days + 730 2,539 458 651 272 1,888 
Total 35,854 40,310 587 706 35,267 39,604 
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Liquidity risk 
Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the Board of Directors, which has built an appropriate liquidity risk management 
framework for the management of the Corporation’s short-, medium- and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements. 
Management mitigates liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and other borrowing facilities, by continuously 
monitoring forecast and actual cash flows, and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities. Newalta’s assessment of 
liquidity risk has remained unchanged from the prior year. 

Interest rate risk 
Newalta is exposed to interest rate risk to the extent that its Credit Facility has a variable interest rate. Management does not enter into any 
derivative contracts to manage the exposure to variable interest rates. The senior unsecured debentures have fixed interest rates until their 
maturity dates, at which point, any remaining amounts owing under these debentures will need to be repaid or refinanced. Newalta’s 
assessment of interest rate risk has remained unchanged from the prior year. The table below provides an interest rate sensitivity analysis to 
net earnings (loss) as at period end: 

  For the year ended December 31, 

   2016 2015 

If interest rates increased by 1% with all other variables held constant   (375) (555) 

 

Market risk 
Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of Newalta’s financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in market 
prices. Newalta is exposed to foreign exchange market risk. Foreign exchange risk refers to the risk that the value of a financial commitment, 
recognized asset or liability will fluctuate due to changes in foreign currency exchange rates. The risk arises primarily from U.S. dollar 
denominated long-term debt and working capital. As at December 31, 2016, Newalta had $29.3 million in net working capital and $23.7 million 
in long-term debt both denominated in U.S. dollars. Management has not entered into any financial derivatives to manage the risk for the 
foreign currency exposure as at December 31, 2016. Newalta’s assessment of market risk has remained unchanged from the prior year. 

The table below provides a foreign currency sensitivity analysis to net earnings (loss) on long-term debt and working capital outstanding as at 
period end: 

  For the year ended December 31, 

   2016 2015 

If the value of the U.S. dollar in relation to the CDN dollar changes 
by $0.01 with all other variables held constant   56 49 
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NOTE 21.  FINANCE CHARGES 
Finance charges consist of: 

  For the year ended December 31, 

   2016 2015 

Interest:     

    Senior secured debt   3,878 2,562 
    Senior unsecured debentures   18,500 18,500 
    Other   1,606 1,088 

Amortization of issue costs(1)   1,376 1,214 
Unwinding of the discount(2)   1,314 7,835 
Capitalized interest   (80) (2,355) 
Finance charges   26,594 28,844 
(1) Relates to issuance costs for senior secured debt of $0.6 million and senior unsecured debentures of $0.8 million (December 31, 2015 - senior secured debt $0.4 million and senior unsecured debentures 

$0.8 million). 
(2) Relates to decommissioning liability. 

NOTE 22.  RELATED PARTIES 

Related Party Transactions 
Newalta did not have any material related party transactions with entities outside the consolidated group in the years ended December 31, 
2016 and 2015. All intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated upon consolidation. 

Key Management Personnel 
Key management personnel are comprised of Newalta’s Board of Directors and Executive Committee. The remuneration of key management 
personnel during the year was as follows:  

 
For the year ended December 31, 

 2016 2015 

Short-term benefits  2,896 3,969 
Stock-based payments 2,063 779 

Total remuneration 4,959 4,748 
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NOTE 23.  PERSONNEL EXPENSES 
Total personnel related costs, excluding stock-based compensation and restructuring related employee termination costs, are as follows: 

  For the year ended December 31, 

  2016 2015 

Wages, salaries and other short-term employee benefits  84,605 122,436 

Included in:     
Operating expenses   65,238 96,395 

General and administrative  19,367 26,041 

NOTE 24.  CASH FLOW STATEMENT SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION 
The following tables provide supplemental information from continuing operations: 

   For the year ended December 31, 

Operating activities   2016 2015 

Source (use) of cash:      

Accounts and other receivables   8,323 55,996 

Inventories   431 3,519 

Prepaid expenses and other assets   1,027 5,146 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities    (16,003) (86,701) 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities related to purchases of 
property, plant and equipment 

  3,148 57,169 

Total change in non-cash working capital   (3,074) 35,129 
 
 
 

    
   For the year ended December 31, 

Investing activities   2016 2015 

Additions to property, plant and equipment   (16,515) (80,280) 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities related to purchases of 
property, plant and equipment 

  (3,148) (57,169) 

Total cash used in property, plant and equipment additions   (19,663) (137,449) 
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NOTE 25.  SEGMENTED INFORMATION 
In the first quarter of 2015, Newalta reorganized its reporting structure and sold the Industrial Division. As a result of these events, the 
Corporation reorganized its reporting structure into two segments – Heavy Oil and Oilfield. The Heavy Oil and Oilfield segments have been 
identified as distinct strategic business units whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the Corporation’s executive officers in order to 
assess financial performance and make resource allocation decisions. The reportable segments have separate operating management and 
operate in distinct competitive environments.  

• The Heavy Oil segment processes oilfield-generated wastes, including treatment, water disposal, salt cavern disposal, landfilling, 
and the sale of recovered crude oil; as well as provides specialized onsite services using centrifugation or other processes for heavy 
oil producers involved in heavy oil mining and in situ production. 

• The Oilfield segment operates in Canada and the U.S. and includes the processing of oilfield-generated wastes, including treatment, 
water disposal, clean oil terminalling, landfilling, the sale of recovered crude oil and the supply and operation of drill site processing 
equipment, including solids control and drill cuttings management; as well as environmental services comprised of environmental 
projects, drilling waste management services and site remediation.  
 

As at and for the year ended December 31, 2016 

 Heavy Oil Oilfield 
Corporate  
and other Total 

Revenue 89,994 115,455 - 205,449 

Operating expenses 56,285 96,252 - 152,537 

General and administrative - - 31,060 31,060 

Depreciation and amortization 24,317 24,267 12,776 61,360 

Stock-based compensation - - 3,849 3,849 

Restructuring and other related costs 803 4,812 18,324 23,939 

Impairment  45,467 10,562 4,720 60,749 

Finance charges  - - 26,594 26,594 

Embedded derivative loss  - - 1,527 1,527 

Total expenses 126,872 135,893 98,850 361,615 

Net loss before taxes  (36,878) (20,438) (98,850) (156,166) 
Property, plant and equipment 
expenditures(1)  

3,231 11,664 1,620 16,515 

Goodwill 4,759 15,135 - 19,894 

Total assets 224,803 456,762 48,202 729,767 

Total liabilities 27,626 94,439 378,326 500,391 
(1) Includes property, plant and equipment expenditures gross of disposals, decommissioning estimate changes, finance leased assets and foreign currency exchange differences.  
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As at and for the year ended December 31, 2015 

 Heavy Oil Oilfield 
Corporate and  

other 
Total continuing 

operations 

Discontinued 
operations 
(Industrial) Total 

Revenue 144,692 182,892 - 327,584 42,108 369,692 

Operating expenses 89,498 138,008 - 227,506 45,365 272,871 

General and administrative - - 45,464 45,464 2,039 47,503 

Depreciation and amortization 23,889 22,964 14,013 60,866 - 60,866 

Stock-based compensation - - (3,541) (3,541) 526 (3,015) 

Restructuring and other related costs 2,233 4,186 23,897 30,316 3,631 33,947 

Impairment  2,915 104,467 27,015 134,397 - 134,397 

Finance charges  - - 28,844 28,844 28 28,872 

Embedded derivative loss  - - 392 392 - 392 

Total expenses 118,535 269,625 136,084 524,244 51,589 575,833 

Net income (loss) before taxes  26,157 (86,733) (136,084) (196,660) (9,481) (206,141) 

Property, plant and equipment 
expenditures(1)  

30,801 40,412 9,067 80,280 2,489 82,769 

Goodwill 4,759 15,135 - 19,894 - 19,894 

Total assets 299,493 490,346 69,644 859,483 - 859,483 

Total liabilities 33,469 94,684 391,229 519,382 - 519,382 
(1) Includes property, plant and equipment expenditures gross of disposals, decommissioning estimate changes and foreign currency exchange differences.  

 

Geographic information 
Canada and the U.S. represent two distinct geographic areas in which all of Newalta’s operations occur.  

   For the year ended December 31,  

   2016 2015 

Revenue by location of services:      
Canada    181,783 273,810 

U.S.   23,666 53,774 

Total   205,449 327,584 
 
 December 31, 2016 December 31, 2015 

Non-current assets(1):   
Canada  569,316 675,392 

U.S. 108,293 119,194 

Total 677,609 794,586 
(1) Non-current assets are comprised of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, and goodwill.  
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